
Legal and Democratic Services

COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE
Tuesday 12 June 2018 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Community and Wellbeing 
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business 
set out in this agenda.

Councillor Barry Nash (Chairman)
Councillor Tony Axelrod (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Kate Chinn
Councillor Lucie Dallen
Councillor Hannah Dalton

Councillor Liz Frost
Councillor Jane Race
Councillor Jean Steer
Councillor Alan Sursham
Councillor Clive Woodbridge

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Tim Richardson, 01372 732122 or 
trichardson@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. QUESTION TIME  

To take any questions from members of the Public.

Please note: Members of the Public are requested to inform the 
Democratic Services Officer before the meeting begins if they wish to ask 
a verbal question to the Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

Public Document Pack



3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Committee held on 20 March 2018 (attached) and to authorise the 
Chairman to sign them.

4. EPSOM AND ST HELIER UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL NHS TRUST: FUTURE 
FOR ACUTE SERVICES  (Pages 7 - 72)

The report considers a Positioning Statement for issues relating to the future 
provision of acute services within Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals 
NHS Trust (ESHUHT) area and the proposed sale of land and buildings, as well 
as the future of West Park Hospital site and the provision of other NHS services.

5. HOME FROM HOSPITAL PROPOSAL  (Pages 73 - 78)

The purpose of this report is to request permission to undertake Home from 
Hospital pilot project for a period of a year commencing on the 1st October 
2018.

6. REVIEW OF CAFES IN PARKS  (Pages 79 - 86)

To review the provision of cafes in parks and open spaces.

7. CORPORATE PLAN: KEY PRIORITY TARGETS FOR 2018 TO 2019  (Pages 
87 - 94)

This report provides a list of all the Key Priority Targets for 2018 to 2019.

8. FORWARD PLAN FOR COMMITTEE ITEMS  (Pages 95 - 98)

This report sets out a work plan for the next Municipal Year.

9. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  (Pages 99 - 100)

The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to pass a resolution to 
exclude the Press and Public from the meeting in accordance with Section 100A 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that the business involves 
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended) and that pursuant to paragraph 10 of 
Part 2 of the said Schedule 12A the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.



10. UPDATE ON CHARGING PROTOCOL - JUNE 2018  (Pages 101 - 106)

This report has not been published because the meeting is likely to be closed to 
the press and public in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted/nature of the proceedings.  The report deals with information relating 
to the business affairs of the Council and the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption currently outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.



This page is intentionally left blank



15

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE held 
on 20 March 2018

PRESENT -

Councillor Barry Nash (Chairman); Councillor Tony Axelrod (Vice-Chairman); 
Councillors Kate Chinn, Hannah Dalton, Jane Race, Jean Steer, Clive Woodbridge and 
Tella Wormington

In Attendance:  

Absent: Councillor Rekha Bansil and Councillor Humphrey Reynolds

Officers present: Damian Roberts (Chief Operating Officer), Rod Brown (Head of 
Housing and Community), Stewart Cocker (Countryside Manager), Rachel Jackson 
(Licensing, Grants and HIA Manager), Serena Powis (Community and Voluntary Sector 
Liaison Officer), Teresa Wingfield (Senior Accountant) and Tim Richardson (Democratic 
Services Officer)

30 ORDER OF COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

The Chairman informed the Committee that the business of the meeting would 
be reordered, with Item 6 of the agenda (Voluntary sector grants and funding 
2018/19) considered following the Minutes of the previous meeting. 

31 QUESTION TIME 

No questions were received from members of the public.

32 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

In the interests of openness and transparency, the following declaration was 
made by a member of the Committee in respect of an item on the agenda:

Epsom & Ewell Local Biodiversity Action Plan - Annual Update 2017

Councillor Tella Wormington, Other Interest: Member of volunteer groups 
undertaking work on the Council's open spaces.

33 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 23 January 2018 were 
agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 20 March 2018 16

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

34 VOLUNTARY SECTOR GRANTS AND FUNDING 2018/19 

The Committee received a report proposing the support to be provided by the 
Council to voluntary organisations in 2018/19. The following matters were 
considered:

a) Level of support provided to voluntary organisations. The Committee 
was informed that the proposed level of support for voluntary 
organisations in 2018/19 was slightly higher than in 2017/18, due to a 
revaluation of the notional rent value of Town Hall accommodation 
provided. There was no increase in any cash grants given by the Council.

b) Review of organisations supported. It was noted that the most recent 
review of voluntary organisations to which the Council provided support 
was carried out approximately 5 years ago.

c) Local nature of charities. The Committee was informed that each of the 
charities supported by the Council was locally based, and that they were 
not national bodies.

Following consideration, the Committee:

(1) Approved the proposed support for voluntary organisations in 2018/19, as 
detailed in Annexe 1 to the report.

35 REVIEW OF DISCRETIONARY GRANTS POLICY 

The Committee received a report requesting an amendment to the Private Sector 
Housing Grants Assistance Policy. The following matter was considered:

a) Purpose of amendment. The Committee was informed that it was 
proposed to remove the requirement for a legal charge on grants under 
the value of £5,000 to enable ‘quick-win’ works to be undertaken without 
delay, and reduce the administrative burden of providing the Discretionary 
Grants Programme. It was noted that a legal charge would still be applied 
for grants of £5,000 or more. 

Following consideration, the Committee:

(1) Agreed to amend the Private Sector Housing Grants Assistance Policy 
(Discretionary Grants Programme) to remove the legal charge on grants 
under the value of £5,000.

36 EPSOM & EWELL LOCAL BIODIVERSITY ACTION PLAN - ANNUAL UPDATE 
2017 

The Committee received a report providing an update on progress in 2017 on the 
implementation of the Epsom and Ewell Local Biodiversity Plan. The following 
matters were considered:

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 20 March 2018 17

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

a) Funding for countryside and open spaces following ‘Brexit’. The 
Committee was informed that the majority of external grant funding for the 
council’s countryside and open spaces was received from European 
Union sources. There was uncertainty over the medium-long term impact 
of leaving the European Union (Brexit) on grant funding for countryside 
services, and officers were monitoring the situation. The Government had 
indicated that existing funding schemes would initially be maintained after 
Brexit.

b) Stones Road allotment site. The Committee was informed that use of 
the Stones Road allotment site was currently suspended due to difficulties 
in its operation due to the presence of a population of Great Crested 
Newts in the neighbouring habitat. Officers continued to monitor the issue.

c) Instances of Ash dieback and Oak Processionary Moth infestation in 
the Borough. The Committee received a verbal update on instances of 
Ash dieback disease and Oak Processionary Moth infestation in the 
Borough, and the control measures which were utilised in their 
management.

d) Thanks to volunteers and staff. The Committee expressed its gratitude 
for all of the work undertaken in the Borough’s parks, countryside and 
open spaces by volunteers. It was noted that the Chairman would 
communicate the Committee’s thanks to the volunteer groups, and that an 
article would be included in the next issue of Borough Insight magazine.

The Committee also expressed its thanks to the Countryside Management 
Team for all their work on the Council’s behalf.

Following consideration, the Committee:

(1) Noted progress during 2017 in implementing the Epsom and Ewell Local 
Biodiversity Plan.

37 VOTE OF THANKS 

The Committee passed a vote of thanks to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman for 
their work on its behalf over the past year.

38 OUTSTANDING REFERENCES 

The Committee noted that in line with the Council’s other Policy Committees, a 
list of outstanding references would not be presented to its future meetings. A 
forward plan of items would be considered by the Chairman and officers during 
the preparation of each committee agenda.

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 8.15 pm

COUNCILLOR BARRY NASH (CHAIRMAN)

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

LOCAL NHS ISSUES – POSITIONING STATEMENT INCLUDING 
EPSOM AND ST HELIER UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL NHS TRUST 
LOCATION FOR ACUTE SERVICES

Head of Service/Contact: Rod Brown, Head of Housing & Community
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annex 1 - Position statement on future of 

Epsom General Hospital and local health 
services
Annex 2 - ESHUHT Strategic outline case for 
investment in our hospitals 2020–2030

Other available papers (not 
attached):

Report to Social Committee 28thJanuary 
2010 Local NHS issues – Position Statement 
Update

Report summary

The report considers a Positioning Statement for issues relating to the future 
provision of acute services within Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals 
NHS Trust (ESHUHT) area and the proposed sale of land and buildings, as well 
as the future of West Park Hospital site and the provision of other NHS 
services.

Recommendation (s)

(1) That the committee adopts the Positioning Statement relating to the 
future location of acute services within the Epsom and St Helier 
University Hospitals NHS Trust (ESHUHT) area and other matters as set 
out in Annex 1.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The Council’s key priorities include supporting our community and this 
report seeks to support our residents through provision of high quality 
heathcare. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

2 Background

2.1 Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust (ESHUHT) was 
formed in 1999, bringing together four hospitals - Epsom, St Helier, Sutton 
and Queen Mary's Hospital for Children. 

2.2 In December 2008, the Council adopted a Charter and Position Statement 
on the delivery of local NHS services, to be used as a standpoint on a 
range of NHS services. This Position Statement was updated in 2010 to 
incorporate the Council’s views on a range of NHS services, including the 
retention of the current A&E services at Epsom General Hospital (EGH) 
and the continued provision of Mental Health services.

2.3 In 2017, ESHUHT undertook a stakeholder engagement process 
considering options for the location of future acute services from 2020 
within the ESHUHT’s area covering Surrey Downs, Merton and Sutton 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) which provides services to 
approximately 729,000 people. 

2.4 The ESHUHT estate within the Borough of Epsom and Ewell includes the 
remaining sites at West Park. Included at this site is the new Epsom and 
Ewell Community Hospital (NEECH) providing community beds and 
inpatients services such as physiotherapy and rehabilitation services. 

2.5 The majority of the West Park site was released to develop new homes as 
part of the Hospital Cluster site.

3 Future of Acute Services 

3.1 In 2017 the ESHUHT completed a pre-consultation engagement process 
with local communities to explore views on six options for the future of 
acute services.

3.2 Following this engagement process, ESHUHT has published a strategic 
outline case in “Strategic outline case for investment in our hospitals 
2020–2030” (attached as Annex 2).

3.3 The commissioners (Surrey Downs, Sutton and Merton Clinical 
Commissioning Groups) have now established an Acute Sustainability 
Programme to look in detail at the challenges faced by the Trust and how 
the Trust can best ensure that the hospitals continue to deliver high 
quality, safe and sustainable services for local people in the years ahead 
whilst also being financially sustainable.

3.4 The commissioners, through the Acute Sustainability Programme, will 
examine whether there is a business case to support the options being 
proposed. If a business case is established leading to significant change 
in service delivery, they are required to enter into a public consultation 
process before making their decision.

3.5 The acute services being considered include:

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

 Major A&E, 

 Inpatient paediatrics, 

 Hospital births and neonatal extra care and 

 Complex emergency medicine.

3.6 By locating acute services at one location, the ESHUHT argues it is 
possible to support acute service teams with senior clinicians 24hrs, 7 
days a week, leading to better outcomes and more lives saved, as well as 
reducing costs associated with the employment of additional agency staff.

3.7 The ESHUHT has also identified the urgent need to invest in the existing 
hospital buildings to bring them up to the standard for 21st century care. 
The ESHUHT states that 43% of the ESHUHT’s clinical space is defined 
as “functionally unsuitable” with St Helier being in poorer condition than 
EGH. 

3.8 It is proposed that, should a bid for central government funding be 
successful, that the ESHUHT will require capital investment between 
£377m - £444m to replace the buildings and create a new acute service 
centre. The ESHUHT currently carries a significant financial deficit which, 
the Trust states, cannot be addressed with a two site configuration. This 
financial deficit is estimated to be c. £33m a year by 2025/26.

3.9 The ESHUHT are considering reducing their existing deficit through the 
release of parts of the EGH site so as to generate capital receipts. The 
Trust has argued that this would increase the opportunity for a successful 
outcome of a bid for central government funding.

4 Proposals

4.1 The Commissioners and ESHUHT have not yet made any decision about 
the location of acute services within the trust’s area.  

4.2 Any scenario considered for the future of the Trust must meet four 
strategic criteria:

 meet the needs of the local population

 be clinically viable

 ensure that the current and projected workforce supply – particularly 
medical and nursing – will be able to staff the hospital without anything 
but unavoidable and infrequent recourse to agency staff

 support financial sustainability.

4.3 The earlier ESHUHT pre-consultation engagement process explored 
views from the community on six options for the future of acute services.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

4.4 In addition to the scenarios outlined in 4.6 below, three other options were 
considered but not taken forward by the Trust. These included: Do nothing 
but bring EGH and St Helier up to functioning levels, locating acute 
services at Sutton hospital and receive no capital investment.

4.5 Following the engagement process, the Trust has developed the Strategic 
Outline Case (see Annex 2) for the three remaining scenarios towards 
public consultation. 

4.6 These scenarios are:

4.6.1 Scenario 1: Acute Services at Epsom General Hospital with full 
range of local services at both hospitals

4.6.2 Scenario 2: Acute services at St Helier Hospital with full range of 
local services at both hospitals

4.6.3 Scenario 3: Acute services at a building at the Royal Marsden 
at Sutton with full range of local services at both hospitals

4.7 The capital investment required at any of the three proposed sites does 
not differ very significantly and is within the range of £377m to £444m.

4.8 Any investment of this magnitude will require consent from NHS England 
Board, Department of Health and the Treasury. In addition, any significant 
change in service delivery will require a period of public consultation. The 
Trust published an indicative timetable in November 2017 which proposed 
the following:

Activity Indicative timeline
Pre-consultation / outline business 
case completed  

June 2018 

Public consultation  Summer/autumn 2018 

Decision on outcome of public 
consultation 

Spring 2019 

4.9 Following the completion of the Strategic Outline Case by ESHUHT, it is 
then for the commissioners, represented by the three CCGs working as a 
Committee in Common, to set out their thinking and to trigger a process of 
pre-consultation. This meeting is scheduled for mid-June 2018.  If 
required any formal public consultation would occur early in 2019. If the 
Trust was to proceed with delivering new facilities, it is initially envisaged 
that these could open in 2024-26.

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

5 Financial and Manpower Implications

5.1 There are no financial or manpower implications arising from the 
recommendations within this report.

5.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of  this 
report. 

6 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

6.1 There are no legal implications arising from the recommendations within 
this report.

6.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of this report.

7 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

7.1 There are no sustainability and community safety implications arising from 
the recommendations within this report.

8 Partnerships

8.1 The Council is one of a number of locally-elected bodies of 
representatives and non-elected bodies having an interest in local health 
services and the impact these have on residents.

9 Risk Assessment

9.1 There is a risk that the public over-estimates the Council’s ability to deliver 
the desired outcomes in local health services. However, producing a 
position statement on the future of acute services and associated matters 
will improve the Council’s ability to play a major role in influencing 
decisions by ESHUHT on local health delivery.

10 Conclusion and Recommendations

10.1 There are a number of proposals and issues currently under consideration 
that will impact on the location and nature of hospital services. There is 
therefore an understandable level of public concern on the future of 
Epsom General Hospital and other local NHS services.

10.2 Given the changes that are being considered and the Council’s role as a 
community leader, it is appropriate that the Council considers the position 
statement on the future use of Epsom General Hospital and associated 
health matters.

10.3 The recommendation is therefore that the committee adopts the 
Positioning Statement relating to the future location of acute services 
within the Epsom and St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust (ESHUHT) 
area and other matters as set out in Annex 1.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

Ward(s) Affected: (All Wards);

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Position Statement: future of Epsom General Hospital and local health 
services

I. That any new acute unit agreed by the Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals 
NHS Trust be sited at Epsom General Hospital.  The alternative locations are too 
London centric, create travel access difficulties for Epsom and Ewell residents 
and do not address the future expansion of housing and population anticipated 
in Epsom and Ewell and East Surrey.

II. That a 24 hour A&E unit be retained at Epsom General Hospital which supports 
treatment for all but the most serious of cases.

III. That additional speciality services be added to that currently provided by South 
West London Elective Orthopaedic Centre. 

IV. That the current and planned disposal of land and estate buildings to fund 
improvements be halted until the funding situation is clarified by the 
Government.   

V. Support for an acute mental health hospital facility for the residents of 
Epsom and Ewell and East Surrey.  The current concentration of mental health 
facilities at St Peter’s Hospital and (part of) West Park does not provide an easily 
accessible NHS service for our residents.

VI. That clarity is provided on the future of the West Park Hospital Site.  Whilst this 
is not an issue for the Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust, the 
future of the site is of importance to understanding how local services are to be 
developed and supported in Epsom and Ewell.

Page 15

Agenda Item 4
Annex 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Strategic outline case for investment 

in our hospitals 2020–2030 

 

Trust Board 

November 2017 

 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

2 

 

IMPORTANT NOTICE 

This is an Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust document. 

Its purpose is to describe the Trust’s current position on different scenarios for delivering its 

proposed clinical model. It is being shared with commissioners, and the Trust requests they 

consider the conclusions of the document and appropriate next steps.  

The document is the Trust’s strategic outline business case for investment in its hospital 

sites. It includes: 

 The case for change 

 The proposed clinical model 

 Feedback from the public on this model and the ways it can be delivered 

 Initial analysis of the potential financial impact of some of the ways the clinical model 

can be delivered 

 Proposed next steps. 

The approach taken to the financial analysis included in this document has been agreed with 

the Trust’s commissioners and regulatory bodies. Capital costs have been estimated based 

on the prescribed Department of Health methodology and include contingency to reflect 

the uncertainty at this stage in planning. 

The financial analysis has been submitted to the Trust’s commissioners and regulators for 

them to assure. This process is expected to take several months, following which, the Trust 

intends to publish further details of the financial analysis undertaken. 

As this assurance has not been completed, the financial information in this document is not 

final, and is subject to change. 

The Trust believes this document will form a solid basis for any further work required. It is 

prepared to support commissioners in any next steps, potentially including a pre-

consultation business case if required.  

 
  

Page 18

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

3 

 

Contents 

IMPORTANT NOTICE.............................................................................................................. 2 

1. Introduction .................................................................................................................... 4 

2. Where the Trust is now................................................................................................... 6 

3. Challenges and the need for a new model of care ....................................................... 10 

4. The future of healthcare – the clinical model............................................................... 19 

5. Benefits of the new clinical model ................................................................................ 24 

6. Engagement on the Trust’s clinical model and scenarios............................................. 26 

7. Initial consideration of scenario viability ...................................................................... 36 

8. Scenario analysis ........................................................................................................... 41 

9. Conclusion ..................................................................................................................... 55 

10. Recommendation .......................................................................................................... 57 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

4 

 

1. Introduction 

1. Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust (the Trust) is a safe and effective 

Trust, primarily operating across two sites (Epsom Hospital and St Helier Hospital) with 

a small presence at Sutton Hospital. The Trust has made significant improvements 

since 2015, investing in over 300 more frontline staff and stabilising its finances.  

2. However, the Trust faces a number of challenges: 

 Working across its two main sites, the Trust will increasingly be unable to deliver 

all the required quality standards across two sites because it will not have 

sufficient specialist staff across key services1  

 Under current plans, the Trust’s buildings will only have had sufficient investment 

to be structurally safe and will not provide the facilities necessary for the delivery 

of twenty-first century care 

 The Trust will continue to have a large and increasing annual deficit; by 202526, it 

expects a c. £40 million deficit if current services and trends (including rising 

demand and cost pressures) continue – this is despite significant productivity 

savings included as part of the Trust’s ‘business as usual’ efficiency plans.   

3. This strategic outline case explores ways the Trust can address these challenges. The 

purpose of this document is to describe: 

 How the Trust can meet the clinical, estate and financial challenges it faces in the 

next ten years 

 Different scenarios to achieve this 

 Some preliminary analysis of these scenarios and which scenarios appear 

potentially viable 

 The next steps for further consideration of the potentially viable scenarios 

available to the Trust. 

  

                                                      
1 Quality standards refer to the standard of care that commissioners expect the Trust to provide in order to ensure care is safe and high 
quality, including levels of staffing and availability of key diagnostics. The standards need to be met on each site delivering certain services. 
Key standards include national seven-day service standards, which require consistent consultant-delivered care in particular specialties 
seven days a week, and locally agreed South West London quality standards. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

5 

 

1.1. This strategic outline case 

4. The Trust has been exploring different potential scenarios in order to support clinical 

and financial sustainability. These two elements are critical to the Trust and must form 

the basis of any long-term planning.  

5. This strategic outline case is a first stage to understand whether there are scenarios 

worth exploring in greater detail as fully developed business cases.  

6. The different scenarios describe different ways of delivering care which could provide 

benefits to patients and the Trust. They have been informed and drawn from the 

significant engagement the Trust has undertaken with the public over the past two 

years, including its most recent public engagement which concluded in October 2017, 

where respondents broadly supported the Trust’s proposed clinical model and efforts 

to address its challenges (see Section 6). 

7. A range of analyses have been undertaken to support this strategic outline case. 

However, not all of the work has been included in this document, as some of the 

analysis is pending regulatory assurance. The purpose of publishing this document at 

this stage is therefore to be open and transparent in communicating the Trust’s current 

thinking at the earliest opportunity, and to continue the ongoing conversation with the 

public about the future of the Trust. The Trust will publish further information as it 

becomes available. 

8. If this strategic outline case is approved, the next step would be for commissioners to 

consider its implications and respond. They would potentially then proceed with a pre-

consultation business case, if public consultation is necessary.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

6 

 

2. Where the Trust is now 

9. The Trust provides services primarily to patients who fall under three clinical 

commissioning groups (CCGs) – Surrey Downs, Sutton and Merton – across two major 

planning areas, South West London and Surrey Heartlands. In addition, NHS England 

directly commissions the Trust’s renal services. 

10. The Trust owns three hospital sites: Epsom Hospital, St Helier Hospital (which includes 

Queen Mary’s Hospital for Children) and Sutton Hospital. Figure 1 shows the 

catchment covered by the Trust.  

Figure 1: Current Trust catchment 

 

11. The Trust currently provides services from all three sites. Epsom Hospital and St Helier 

Hospital are district general hospitals, each providing a 24/7 consultant-led accident 

and emergency (A&E), acute and general medicine, surgery (non-elective only at St 

Helier Hospital), maternity, children’s services and outpatients. In addition: 

 Epsom General Hospital hosts the South West London Elective Orthopaedic 

Centre (SWLEOC), an NHS treatment centre providing regional elective 

orthopaedic surgery services for four South West London trusts; 

 St Helier Hospital provides a regional renal service, a stroke unit, and undertakes 

all the emergency surgery for the Trust and is the main pathology centre; and 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

7 

 

 Sutton Hospital is mainly vacant and only provides a few services for outpatients. 

The site is adjacent to The Royal Marsden NHS Foundation Trust’s Sutton site. 

12. The Trust currently provides services for a population of around 490,000 people, and in 

2016-17, had over 913,000 patient contacts, summarised in Figure 2.  

Figure 2: Overview of the Trust in the past twelve months 

 

13. The Trust currently employs a team of c. 5,000 staff and 600 volunteers across its sites. 

14. The Total income received by the Trust during 2016-17 was £392 million. This reflects 

an increase of £20 million compared to 2015-16.   

15. The Trust currently has 1,048 beds, which are described in Figure 3. 

Figure 3: Current Trust bed breakdown
2 

(Beds) 
Epsom 

Hospital 

St Helier 

Hospital 

Sutton 

Hospital 
TOTAL 

Non-elective overnight (inc. maternity)
3
 263 443 - 706 

Elective overnight 40 68 - 108 

Critical care - 13 - 13 

Day 36 34 - 70 

SWLEOC 80 0 - 80 

Other 35 36 - 71 

TOTAL 454 594 - 1,048 

Source: Trust analysis 

16. The cohort of patients accessing the Trust’s services has started to change in recent 

years. In particular, more patients in Surrey Downs are accessing services at the Trust 

compared to Merton. This is also reflected in the Trust’s commissioning income, where 

                                                      
2 Other beds includes escalation beds, day and overnight chairs, and private patient beds. 
3 Includes high dependency beds. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

8 

 

the share of income related to Surrey Downs commissioners has increased (see Figure 

4). 

Figure 4: Share of the Trust’s commissioning income 

% Trust income 2014-15 2016-17 

Surrey Downs Clinical Commissioning Group 26% 30% 

Sutton Clinical Commissioning Group 27% 29% 

Merton Clinical Commissioning Group 10% 10% 

NHS England  13% 14% 

Other Clinical Commissioning Groups 24% 17% 

Source: Trust analysis  

2.1. The Trust’s strategic objectives  

17. The recent improvements, such as the investment in more than 300 additional 

frontline staff, has helped to form the Trust’s current strategy. For 2015–2020 the 

Trust has committed that: 

 Both Epsom Hospital and St Helier Hospital will continue to provide 24/7 care 

across A&E, maternity and inpatient children’s services 

 St Helier Hospital will provide specialist and emergency care, such as acute 

surgery for the sickest patients, and Epsom Hospital will expand its range of 

planned care 

 Work will continue with patients, GPs, commissioners, NHS England, NHS 

Improvement and other partners to provide significantly more care in community 

settings – closer to home for patients – so that they only have to come to hospital 

when they really need to. 

18. This strategic outline case considers developments over a longer time horizon, seeking 

to ensure that the Trust is clinically and financially viable over the next ten years and 

beyond. This has required broader consideration of the Trust’s clinical model. 

19. The Trust and its commissioners have a commitment to deliver more person centred 

care closer to patients’ homes. Person centred care is already being provided through a 

number of initiatives, including:  

 Epsom Health and Care, a leading partnership of providers supporting the over-

65s to receive care at home and avoid unnecessary stays in hospital 

 Sutton Homes of Care, a national vanguard programme, which is improving 

hospital experiences for care home residents.  

20. Linked to this, local and national strategy is targeting better patient care to support 

shorter lengths of stay in hospital beds and provide more joined up care when patients 

Page 24

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

9 

 

are discharged from hospital and require follow up services, for example in the 

community.  

21. The Trust has engaged with leadership from South West London and Surrey Heartlands 

throughout the design process. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

10 

 

3. Challenges and the need for a new model of care 

22. Over the next ten years, the Trust faces three main challenges: 

 Clinical sustainability, whereby the Trust can deliver high quality care, including 

meeting relevant clinical standards across two acute sites with the workforce 

available 

 Addressing critical issues with the Trust’s buildings and ensuring care is delivered 

from twenty-first century buildings 

 Achieving a financially sustainable position. 

23. Together, these challenges mean that the Trust needs to fundamentally consider how 

it organises itself and how it delivers care most effectively to the populations it serves. 

3.1. Clinical challenges 

24. A number of developments in clinical care create challenges for the Trust that it must 

meet in the next ten years. 

25. Specifically, challenges include: 

 Providing care to the sickest patients across two acute sites: Clinically, standards 

are improving the quality of care delivered to patients, including moving the NHS to 

delivering consistent, consultant-led care seven days a week across many services. 

Providing care to the sickest patients across two acute sites means it is increasingly 

challenging to meet clinical standards. These standards, together with the staffing 

needed to provide care for the sickest patients across two acute sites, creates a 

need for a workforce larger than that available to the Trust. 

 Meeting local healthcare needs: There are clear local healthcare needs in the 

Epsom and St Helier localities that the Trust must meet, including delivering more 

care closer to patients’ homes. 

26. In addition, the national cancer vanguard creates the opportunity for improved cancer 

care across South West London and Surrey, led by Royal Marsden Partners (RMP) (a 

collaboration to deliver cancer services across West London, which includes the Trust 

and The Royal Marsden, among other partners). Realising these opportunities is central 

to the Trust’s aims for clinical care in the future.4 

27. These challenges mean the Trust needs to consider how to change its clinical model. 

  

                                                      
4 See, for example: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/new_care_models.pdf. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/new_care_models.pdf


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

11 

 

Challenges associated with providing care to the sickest patients across two acute sites  

28. Providing care for the sickest patients across two acute sites creates a number of issues 

with meeting clinical standards, including: 

 Ensuring on-site emergency medicine consultant staffing in the emergency 

department for 16 hours a day and seven days a week (with off-site back-up and 

the ability to arrive on-site within 30 minutes if needed outside of these 16 

hours) 

 Achieving actual admission to a ward for patients within one hour of the decision 

to admit 

 Providing timely access to 24/7 emergency key diagnostics 

 Having sufficient 24/7 on-site obstetrics consultant coverage.  

29. Meeting these standards and providing care for the sickest patients across two acute 

sites means the Trust needs c. 52 more consultants to meet current seven-day 

standards across both sites (a c. 22% increase in consultant staffing).  

30. This would create a significant cost pressure for the Trust. But more importantly, due 

to shortages in available consultants (in particular in emergency and acute medicine), 

the Trust will continue to struggle to recruit to these additional posts and will 

increasingly be unable to provide the required level of consultant coverage.5  

31. In addition, providing care for the sickest patients across two acute sites means the 

Trust will need additional middle grade and junior doctors to staff its rotas.  

32. Currently, the Trust struggles to recruit to these posts and relies on temporary staff; 

from February to April 2016, the Trust spent over £2.1 million on temporary medical 

staffing (see Figure 5). This is expensive and creates issues with governance, continuity 

and team working.  

33. These issues will increase as the need for additional doctors grows; again, this reflects 

national and regional challenges around the recruitment of doctors. 

                                                      
5 For example, see: House of Lords (2017) The Long-term Sustainability of the NHS and Adult Social Care, 
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201617/ldselect/ldnhssus/151/151.pdf; Health Education England (2016) Workforce Plan for 
England 2016, 
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/HEE%20Workforce%20Plan%20for%20England%202016%20180516_0.pdf. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/ld201617/ldselect/ldnhssus/151/151.pdf
https://www.hee.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/documents/HEE%20Workforce%20Plan%20for%20England%202016%20180516_0.pdf


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

12 

 

Figure 5: Three month temporary midgrade and junior doctor spend (Feb–Apr 2016) 

Specialty Midgrade doctors (£000) Junior doctors (£000) Total (£000) 

General and acute medicine
6
 399 289 688 

Emergency 365 128 493 

Paediatrics 203 50 253 

Surgery 195 173 368 

Anaesthetics 109 46 155 

Maternity 69 26 95 

Renal 14 11 25 

Stroke 6 14 20 

Radiology 8 - 8 

Other 4 9 13 

TOTAL 1,372 746 2,118 

Source: Trust analysis  

34. This means that meeting clinical standards will become increasingly challenging due to 

shortages in the workforce available. Over the next 10 years, it is unlikely the Trust will 

be able to meet clinical standards while delivering care to its sickest patients across 

two acute sites. 

Meeting local healthcare needs 

35. Analysis of the Trust’s patients suggests that the needs of the patient population could 

be better met by a different model of care – a model that helps to deliver more person 

centred care closer to patients’ homes where possible, and which brings services 

together where there is a clear quality argument. 

36. Multiple audits of patients in Trust beds suggest that up to c. 55% could be better 

managed in a different ward type.7 The current clinical model offers limited capacity to 

provide beds which are appropriate for these patients’ needs, meaning that they will 

continue to be treated on wards where the level of care is higher than it needs to be. 

This leads to other patients waiting longer than necessary to be admitted. 

37. The different local populations served by the Trust have some specific needs that must 

be met, including: 

 The community around Epsom Hospital is older than the rest of the Trust’s 

surrounding population, and the area has a lower population density than the 

community around St Helier. This creates specific challenges in ensuring access, 

particularly for urgent care, and delivering services to more elderly patients. 

 There are pockets of higher deprivation and less affluent communities around St 

Helier Hospital. This creates a specific need for a level of service provision from 

the St Helier site. Moreover, any subsequent work on the clinical model would 

need to consider these issues in more detail, including the relationship with 

                                                      
6 Including acute medical specialties. 

7 Bed audits have included: South West London bed audit (March 2016), Trust analysis of patient acuity (April 2015) and Epsom Health and 
Care analysis of Epsom Hospital patients (August 2015). 

Page 28

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

13 

 

health inequalities and impacts on travel and transport for different patient 

groups. 

Continuing with two acute sites is unlikely to be viable and a new clinical model is needed 

38. It is unlikely the Trust will be able to deliver clinical standards by providing care to its 

sickest patients across two acute sites. Therefore, continuing with this configuration is 

unlikely to be clinically viable. The Trust can only meet clinical standards if the care for 

the sickest patients and those at greatest risk of becoming sicker is consolidated. 

39. Moreover, the healthcare needs of the Trust’s patients could be better met by 

changing the way that care is delivered to ensure it is appropriate to their level of need 

and delivered as close to home as possible. 

40. This suggests that the needs of local patients could be better met by a different model 

of care that consolidates the care for the sickest patients while providing enhanced 

services more locally. 

3.2. Estates challenges 

41. The Trust has an ambition to develop its estate to match its mission to put patients 

first, and help to deliver improved clinical care. The objective of its estates 

development is summarised in Figure 6.  

Figure 6: Objectives of the Trust’s estates redevelopment 

  

Source: Trust estates strategy  

42. Delivering the clinical model will require changes to the Trust’s estate. The current 

estate falls far short of what patients should expect from twenty-first century 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

14 

 

healthcare facilities. There are significant structural constraints at the St Helier site in 

particular, which mean that the Trust can only make basic repairs. This maintenance is 

also a significant ongoing cost to the Trust.  

43. Approximately 55% of the Trust estate – and 90% of St Helier Hospital – was built 

before the NHS was established in 1948, limiting the Trust’s ability to deliver its aims 

for clinical care. A significant part of the estate is not functionally suitable for modern 

healthcare delivery. The design of the buildings means infections are difficult to control 

and beds are too close together. The design also drives unavoidable inefficient practice 

– for example, it is difficult to co-locate services together when required, which can 

mean that patients often have to be transferred distances, sometimes outside, from 

one department to another. The inflexibility of the building design makes it difficult for 

the Trust to reconfigure services to support closer working with community and 

primary care.  

44. Figure 7 illustrates some of the current insufficient bed spacing at St Helier, compared 

to the improved bed spacing at the purpose-built SWLEOC site at Epsom Hospital, 

which opened in 2004. 

Figure 7: Bed spacing at St Helier Hospital compared to a SWLEOC ward 

Insufficient bed spacing at St Helier Hospital Improved bed spacing at purpose-built SWLEOC 

  

Source: https://epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/epsom-and-st-helier-2020-2030  

45. To address some of these challenges, the Trust plans to invest c. £91m in its estate 

over the next three years. This is described in the Trust’s Estate Strategy 2015–2020 

and will go some way to resolving the issues the Trust has with its estate, including: 

 Addressing critical maintenance issues: In particular, addressing the issues at St 

Helier raised by the Care Quality Commission. This includes new boilers and plant 

for the heating and hot water systems and investment to ensure compliance with 

asbestos, fire and water regulations. At Epsom, this includes investment in Wells 

Wing and other infrastructure. 

 Supporting changes in clinical services to meet standards and patient demand: 

At St Helier, this includes a new critical care unit, a new renal dialysis unit, a 

second computerised tomography (CT) scanner, a new adult audiology unit, co-

location of outpatients and re-configuration of wards to improve patient flow. At 

Epsom, this includes a sixth theatre for SWLEOC, provision of community beds 

Page 30

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

https://epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/epsom-and-st-helier-2020-2030


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

15 

 

and day units (in partnership with Epsom Health and Care), and co-location of 

outpatients.  

 Addressing other estates issues at St Helier and Epsom: Including replacing the 

endoscopy reprocessing facility at St Helier, moving the sterilisation and 

decontamination unit service at Epsom off site, and addressing underutilised 

buildings and the space vacated by Surrey and Borders Partnership NHS 

Foundation Trust at Epsom. 

 Rationalising the estate: Including moving corporate services off site, moving 

services at St Helier and Epsom hospital from peripheral buildings into other parts 

of the hospitals, and providing deck car parks at both Epsom and St Helier 

hospitals. Surplus land at St Helier, Epsom and Sutton will be disposed of. 

46. However, this investment does not address all the issues the Trust faces. It does not 

significantly reconfigure the estate to allow for new ways of working and delivering 

care in line with the local and national clinical strategies.  

47. This means the Trust needs to consider how it can invest in its estate over the next 10 

years to achieve its aims and support clinical care delivery. 

  

Page 31

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

16 

 

3.3. Finance challenges 

Current financial position 

48. With the agreement and support of NHS Improvement and its commissioners, the 

Trust is currently spending c. £37 million more annually than it receives in funding. This 

position has been progressively deteriorating over time since 2013-14. This is shown in 

Figure 8 around the Trust’s historical financial performance, where the financial 

position has worsened from a c. £7m deficit in 2013-14 to a c. £37m planned deficit for 

2017-18. 

49. Contributory factors to this financial challenge include:  

 Increasing investments in its clinical workforce 

 The cost of maintaining its estate 

 Reduced opportunities for efficiencies to be made within existing operating and 

clinical models 

 Lower overall funding made available. 

Figure 8: Trust historical financial performance
8

 

Source: Trust analysis  

50. The financial challenge should be seen in the context of the overall funding challenges 

in South West London and the wider NHS.9  

 

                                                      
8 Sustainability funding (STF) refers to the additional planned funding made available by NHS England to support the suitability of 
providers. The £27m deficit which is the starting point for this analysis includes this planned funding amount for 2017/18, and it is 
assumed that this funding is recurrent. This approach is in line with other recent business cases, for example: 
http://www.wnecumbria.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Financial-analysis-addendum-Jul-2016.pdf.  All financial estimates in this 
section are in nominal terms.  
9 See, for example: https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf  

Page 32

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

http://www.wnecumbria.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/09/Financial-analysis-addendum-Jul-2016.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

17 

 

Future financial challenges 

51. By 2025-26, in order to meet expected increases in demand and cost pressures, the 

Trust may need an estimated c. £40 million of additional annual funding above that 

which is likely to be available (based on current services). This forecast has been 

developed based on a set of assumptions which have been agreed with commissioners 

and regulators. 

52. In particular, average increases in funding are outstripped by demand growth, cost 

inflation and local cost pressures, the cost of meeting clinical standards while 

delivering care to its sickest patients across two acute sites, and the high cost of 

maintaining the existing estate. 

53. The financial challenge also includes significant efficiency programmes and demand 

management plans (e.g. reducing average length of stay safely and avoiding 

unnecessary admissions). These schemes reflect ‘business as usual’ improvements 

which can be delivered within the current clinical and operational models; without 

these the financial challenge would be much greater.  

54. Figure 9 summarises the financial challenge from 2017-18 to 2025-26.10 It shows: 

 Activity growth and demand management: The additional income from treating 

more patients, after accounting for demand management plans, which involve 

working with commissioners to ensure that patients receive the right care in the 

right setting. 

 Cost pressures and cost inflation: The growth in costs related to key areas such as 

pay increases as well as drugs and equipment, based on national assumptions.11 

 Efficiencies: The savings that the Trust plans to achieve through improving 

productivity, similar to other hospitals across the country, including plans such as 

replacing as much agency usage as possible with substantive workforce. These 

‘business as usual’ efficiencies are significant: the c. £73 million savings over the 

eight year period reflects almost 20% of the Trust’s current income, or c. 2.3% per 

year. These efficiency assumptions have been agreed with regulators and were 

developed based on benchmarking (i.e. comparing the Trust’s costs with other 

similar Trusts), in line with best practice methods.12 

 Other costs: The cost of borrowing money from the government to finance key 

investments such as medical equipment and improving the estate.  

                                                      
10 Further detailed work will be required to refine these estimates including developing the year on year profile of the financial position. 
11 See the national tariff: https://improvement.nhs.uk/resources/national-tariff-1719/. 
12 The NHS National Tariff – which specifies the methodology and prices to be paid to providers for a series of agreed services – includes an 
expectation for improved efficiency on the part of providers of 2% per year, which is a further point of triangulation around the c. 2.3% per 
year assumption included.  

Page 33

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

https://improvement.nhs.uk/resources/national-tariff-1719/


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

18 

 

Figure 9: Trust 2025-26 position (£m) 

 
Source: Trust analysis  

3.4. Need for a new clinical model 

55. Based on this analysis, continuing with the current configuration of providing care to 

the sickest patients across two acute sites will mean the Trust will be increasingly 

unable to meet clinical standards, working from buildings that are unfit and financially 

unsustainable. In particular, it is clear that maintaining the current two acute site 

configuration will not enable the Trust to address these fundamental issues. 

56. Addressing these issues requires the Trust to consider both how it can deliver care 

differently in the future and the different ways it can organise itself to deliver this. 

57. The Trust has described below a clinical model to achieve its aims for clinical care and 

then a series of scenarios describing how it can organise itself to deliver this. 

Page 34

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

19 

 

4. The future of healthcare – the clinical model 

58. A process has been undertaken to design a new clinical model to address the 

challenges the Trust faces and meet clinical standards. This process has included 

significant engagement from a variety of stakeholders including Trust clinicians, 

commissioners, other providers and local GPs. The clinical model has also been 

informed by the public.  

59. In 2016, the Trust engaged the public on the model of care for the future. The feedback 

was clear that people wanted as much care as possible to be delivered closer to home, 

but people also recognised that there is a case for consolidation where the quality of 

care will be improved. This is aligned with feedback from the most recent public 

engagement in 2017 (described in detail in Section 6); the public has been broadly 

supportive of the new clinical model as a means for the Trust to achieve its aims for the 

next 10 years. 

60. The clinical model has been developed based on achieving local and national clinical 

strategies for improved care delivery and patient outcomes. This aims to meet the 

needs of the local population, deliver commissioners’ requirements and improve the 

quality of care provided. 

61. The Trust is clear that any future clinical model must, at a minimum, align to the 

principles included in Figure 10. 

Figure 10: Principles of the new model of care  

 Source: Trust analysis  

62. The clinical model follows these key principles, with a combination of local services 

(delivered from specific sites in all scenarios) and centralised services (delivered from 

Page 35

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

20 

 

one of three sites under different scenarios). The proposed model therefore has two 

main features: 

 Keeping services local: That is, meeting the needs of local populations and 

delivering care closer to home by working more closely with community and 

primary care to deliver consistent and joined-up services to the Epsom, Sutton 

and Merton communities.  

 Improving care for the sickest and most at-risk patients: That is, consolidating 

acute services onto a single site for the sickest patients and those most at risk of 

becoming acutely unwell; for these patients, there is a clear quality argument for 

consolidation.  

63. This clinical model aligns closely with local plans (including the plans of Surrey Downs, 

Sutton and Merton clinical commissioning groups and the South West London and 

Surrey Heartlands sustainability and transformation partnerships) for the development 

of acute and out of hospital care, including increasing the delivery of out of hospital, 

elderly care and rehabilitation care. 

64. This also builds on the Trust’s work with both Epsom Health and Care – which has 

significantly increased the amount of care provided in people’s homes and will be 

expanded to Sutton from April 2018 – and Sutton Homes of Care. 

4.1. Keeping services local 

65. To meet the needs of local populations, the clinical model proposes that at least c. 85% 

of patients will continue to be treated locally at Epsom and St Helier hospitals in any 

scenario. These include: 

 Urgent and emergency care: For the c. 100,000 people presenting with urgent 

treatment needs there would be generalist-run (either by a GP or a generalist 

doctor), 24/7 urgent treatment centre(s) with specialist medical support as 

required.  

 Outpatients and diagnostics: Patients would receive outpatient services, 

screening endoscopy and radiology. 

 Elderly care and rehabilitation beds: Elderly care, community and rehabilitation 

beds (including a Centre of Excellence for Rehabilitation) would be available for 

those patients that require lower acuity support. 

 Integrated care: Multi-functional spaces would be available for community-facing 

services, including primary care, social services and community services.  For 

example, this could include learning disability services, a day centre, community 

centre and/or a children’s centre.  

 Antenatal and postnatal care: Ante and post-natal clinics for pregnant women 

and new mothers. 

Page 36

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

21 

 

 Elective procedures: Non-complex elective surgery and the eye unit. 

 South West London Elective Orthopaedic Centre: Epsom Hospital would continue 

to host SWLEOC. 

 Renal dialysis: This specialist service, commissioned by NHS England, would 

continue at St Helier Hospital. 

Figure 11: Services to be delivered locally 

 

Source: https://epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/  

4.2. Improving care for the sickest and most at-risk patients 

66. The clinical model then proposes that care for the c. 15% of patients who are either 

acutely unwell or are at risk of becoming acutely unwell are treated at a single location. 

67. There are six services in this category, of which two (critical care and emergency 

surgery and trauma) are already consolidated at St Helier (these services have specific 

clinical challenges associated as described in Section 3).13 The six services are 

summarised in Figure 12 and would include:  

 Inpatient paediatrics (inpatient and specialist): Including paediatric A&E. 

 Major A&E: The 24/7 emergency department taking major cases. 

 Births: For maternity services, the Trust aims to provide at least two resident 

doctors onsite at all times. 

 Complex emergency medicine: Medical care for the sickest medical patients (e.g., 

those needing high dependency care and coronary care). 

                                                      
13 These services align with the published evidence for the benefit of consolidating the most acute services (King’s Fund (2014) The 
Reconfiguration of Clinical Services: What is the evidence?, http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/reconfiguration-clinical-services). 

Page 37

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

https://epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/
http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/reconfiguration-clinical-services


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

22 

 

 Critical care: The critical care unit currently consolidated at St Helier (currently 13 

beds, with an additional two planned). 

 Emergency surgery and trauma: Services currently consolidated at St Helier, a 

change which has resulted in improved quality for patients. 

Figure 12: Services delivered from a consolidated site (yellow indicates services already consolidated) 

 

Source: Trust analysis  

68. Consolidating these services is expected to improve the quality of care provided and 

meet relevant quality standards without the need for additional consultant 

recruitment.  This will also enable the Trust to reduce its reliance on agency staff, and 

ease other potential recruitment challenges for other local NHS organisations – see 

Section 7. 

4.3. Alignment of the model with clinical commissioning group plans and local 
sustainability and transformation partnerships 

69. The clinical model has been developed in partnership with local commissioners (Surrey 

Downs, Sutton and Merton clinical commissioning groups) and sustainability and 

transformation partnerships (South West London and Surrey Heartlands). It aligns 

directly with commissioners’ plans for care in South West London and in Surrey. 

70. For example, the design of the elderly care and rehabilitation bed model aligns with 

Merton Clinical Commissioning Group’s plans for intermediate care, including the 

cohort of patients and leadership (i.e., generalist-led care). Merton has identified a 

growing demand for intermediate care, which the Trust’s plans for elderly care and 

rehabilitation services will help to address. There is also a clear link with their ‘One 

Page 38

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

23 

 

Public Estate’ strategy, which is in development but will be supported by the Trust’s 

plans for local care.  

71. The Trust’s plans for local care also align closely with the Sutton Health and Care model 

and the Epsom Health and Care model, which the Trust has been involved with from its 

inception. 

72. The South West London sustainability and transformation partnership has a clear aim 

to move care closer to home. It emphasises increased support at home for those in 

need and a shift to more out of hospital care where possible. The delivery of local 

services, integrated into community and primary care, means that the Trust can 

support this change in emphasis. Moreover, the delivery of elderly care and 

rehabilitation and urgent treatment services locally reduces the dependence on acute 

care. 

73. Assumptions used in the scenario analysis have been aligned with sustainability and 

transformation partnership assumptions where relevant.  

Page 39

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

24 

 

5. Benefits of the new clinical model 

74. This clinical model is expected to deliver significant benefits to patients and the Trust. 

The benefits of the new clinical model are summarised in Figure 13. 

Figure 13: Benefits of the new model of care 

 

Source: Trust analysis  

Clinical benefits 

75. Changing the model of care enables a range of clinical improvements, including: 

 Delivering more consistent care seven days a week 

 Providing greater consultant presence on site for key specialties, improving the 

quality of care provided 

 Improving the patient pathway during patients’ time in hospital 

 Integrating care with other local providers, including community services and GPs 

to offer a seamless experience for patients 

 Ensuring patients receive care appropriate to their level of need (including 

offering different types of bed for patients with lower acuity needs). 

  

Page 40

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

25 

 

Workforce 

76. By increasing the consultant coverage in hospital, the Trust can maximise its existing 

workforce and reduce dependence on bank and agency staff.  

77. In addition, the Trust can use different combinations of staff (for example, with 

consultants supervising more midgrade doctors and nurse practitioners) to provide 

better quality care and enable the Trust to be less reliant on scarce middle grade and 

junior doctors.  

78. Finally, changing the clinical model will provide enhanced opportunities for training 

across different settings of care. 

Financial performance 

79. Consolidating services offers financial benefits, as the new model of care would be 

significantly more efficient than delivering care to the Trust’s sickest patients across to 

acute sites.  

80. This is detailed in Section 8.2, including estimates of the financial benefits of changing 

the clinical model. 

Estates performance and design 

81. New facilities offer direct benefits – by being more efficient and easier to maintain and 

clean, and ensuring a much reduced risk of hospital-acquired infection such as 

meticillin-resistant Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA) or Clostridium difficile (C. Diff) – as 

well as offering a better environment for healing.  

82. These design benefits include more single rooms; flexibility in room design to meet 

patient needs; quieter, lighter and airier rooms and wards; improved visibility for 

nurses; and improved hand-washing facilities. 

Use of technology 

83. A new model creates the opportunity to use cutting edge technology to support care, 

including electronic patient records (that can be shared across different providers), use 

of robotics, electronic monitoring in wards and critical care, and an online patient 

portal to ensure patients are involved in their care. 

Meeting commissioner’s requirements 

84. Delivering more care closer to home, including integrating care with other providers, 

supports local commissioners’ plans to change the way care is delivered in the area. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

26 

 

6. Engagement on the Trust’s clinical model and scenarios 

6.1. Engagement with the public 

85. Over the 13 weeks from 10 July to 6 October, the Trust engaged extensively with the 

local communities, including producing a detailed engagement document, a smaller 

leaflet, a ten-minute video and a four page advertorial in the local newspapers.  

86. The outcomes of this engagement are described in the Trust’s public engagement 

report (available on the Trust’s website),14 and are summarised in this section. 

The Consultation Institute 

87. The Trust commissioned The Consultation Institute to review and advise on the 

feedback received as part of the engagement process, and the engagement report was 

drafted by the Trust based on this support. In addition, the report also makes 

reference to questionnaires and petitions which were independently circulated. 

These represent a campaign response and have been included to ensure that all 

opinions and views are recorded in this phase. 

88. Feedback from The Consultation Institute confirmed that the Trust’s engagement work 

has met the institute’s criteria for best practice pre-consultation and suggested that 

future work should further explore the key themes emerging from engagement (see 

Section 6.6). 

“tCI is happy to confirm that your pre-engagement work so far – leading to your Pre-
engagement Report – has met tCI’s criteria for best-practice pre-consultation” 

The Consultation Institute (tCI) 

 

  

                                                      
14 www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk  

Page 42

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2

http://www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/


STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

27 

 

6.2. Reach of engagement 

89. The Trust has reached over 25,000 people, via a variety of methods, including: 

 31 internal drop in sessions meeting with over 2,500 staff; 

 47 local meetings and events attracting over 2,000 people; 

 11,977 people visiting the Trust’s 2020–2030 webpage since the launch; 

 6,310 people viewing the Trust’s video; 

 441 people pledging their support; 

 More than 270 senior clinical staff signing a letter of support; 

 More than 8,000 people engaging through Healthwatch Surrey; and 

 Distributing circa 50,000 leaflets. 

6.3. Pledges of support 

90. Using cards and the online form, 441 people have pledged their support for the case to 

be made for an investment of between £300 million and £400 million, keeping services 

local and developing a new specialist acute facility. 

6.4. Individual responses 

91. Of the 1,059 people to date completing the questionnaire, the following responses 

were given to each of the questions: 

Do you agree with our aim to provide as much care as possible from our existing 

hospital sites at St Helier and Epsom and do this by working more closely with the other 

local health and care providers? 

 941 people answered yes (89%); 

 19 people answered no (2%); 

 16 people said that they either did not know or needed more information (2%); 

 2 people stated that they wanted no change (<1%); 

 34 people answered N/A (3%); 

 40 people made general comments (4%); and 

 7 people said that they wanted just one hospital site (1%). 

Do you think we have made the case that we will improve patient care by bringing 

together our services for our sickest or most at-risk patients on a new specialist acute 

facility on one site? 

 803 people answered yes (76%) with an additional 42 saying yes, as long as the 

site is at a specific site (4%), bringing the total in support to 79.8% 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

28 

 

 73 people answered no (7%); 

 63 people said they did not know or need more information (6%); 

 9 people said that they wanted both sites to stay as they are (1%); 

 44 people said N/A (4%); 

 24 people left general comments (2%); and 

 1 person wanted one hospital site (<1%). 

Do you think we should consider any other scenarios? 

 149 people responded yes (14%) and of these 50 people gave proposed scenarios 

(5%); 

 446 people responded no (42%); 

 88 people said that they preferred one of the scenarios we had presented (8%); 

 71 people said they didn't know or needed more information (7%); 

 189 people responded N/A (18%); 

 8 people responded that they wanted no change or the status quo (1%); 

 4 people said that they thought we should have a single site (<1%); and 

 104 people left general comments which did not relate to the question (10%). 

92. Of the 50 people who made suggestions for alternative scenarios, these have been 

grouped in to six main themes: 

 Build a new super hospital 

 Close one or both hospitals 

 Acute facilities on both or all three sites 

 Separate Epsom and St Helier or merge with another trust 

 Rebuild St Helier Hospital 

 Change services or location.  

93. 88 respondents replied to say they preferred one of the scenarios presented by the 

Trust. These break down as: 

 3 people preferred either Epsom or St Helier primary (3%); 

 1 person preferred Epsom or Sutton primary (1%); 

 2 people preferred either St Helier or Sutton primary (2%); 

 15 people preferred Epsom primary (17%); 

Page 44

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

29 

 

 13 people preferred St Helier primary (15%);  

 42 people preferred Sutton primary (48%); and 

 12 people preferred Sutton primary specifically mentioning The Royal Marsden 

(14%). 

94. Responses were also received to questions asking how individuals would like to be 

engaged with in the future, as well as other comments. These are detailed fully in the 

Trust’s engagement report, available on its website (www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk). 

6.5. Responses from stakeholders and groups 

95. The Trust received formal responses from a range of key stakeholders, which are 

categorised below. 

96. Many stakeholders, as expected, commented on the site that they thought would be 

best for the specialist acute facility and there was a diverse range of views. Some 

people explained why they had chosen a specific site ranging from accessibility, needs 

of deprived communities and the benefits for cancer patients, which helps to inform 

further potential work. 

Stakeholder responses broadly in favour of the clinical model and/or scenarios 

97. Stakeholder responses broadly in favour included: 

 Trust staff: A large number of senior clinicians (all 36 senior nurses and over 240 

consultants) within the Trust signed a public letter, which supports the hospitals 

remaining as one Trust and the development of a new acute facility for the 

acutely unwell and most at-risk located on one of the Trust sites. Key consultants 

also produced public statements, including the Clinical Director of Gynaecology 

and Head of the Haematology Department. A wider letter of support from all staff 

was also signed by 189 members of the team. 

 Trade unions and Staffside partnership representatives have stated: “support of 

the proposals that Epsom and St Helier stay together as one Trust…A new purpose 

built building would go a long way to meeting the training and development needs 

of staff whilst providing state of the art care to our ageing population and 

increasing patient numbers. It would mean that more money could be diverted 

from crumbling building repairs to frontline patient services.” 

 Surrey Heartlands Health and Care Partnership Transformation Board (STP). 

 Local authorities: Including London Borough of Sutton, Reigate and Banstead 

Borough Council, Mole Valley and Epsom and Ewell Borough Council. 

 Residents’ associations: 15 local residents’ associations have written in with their 

broad support for the clinical model and investment locally, including a joint letter 

from the Chair of the Standing Committee of Residents’ Associations; the chairs of 

Page 45

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

30 

 

Ewell Village, Epsom Town, Ewell Downs, Nonsuch, Stamford Ward, College Ward, 

Ashtead, and West Ewell and Ruxley Residents’ Associations. 

 The Royal Marsden Hospital NHS Foundation Trust: The Royal Marsden 

“welcomes the opportunity to work with Epsom and St Helier Hospitals on the 

development of modern healthcare facilities on the Sutton site.” 

 South West London acute hospital trusts: Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation 

Trust, Croydon Health Services NHS Trust and St George’s University Hospitals 

NHS Foundation Trust have written to the Trust with their broad support for 

improvements in the infrastructure and environment for acute services across 

South West London. 

 Friends of Epsom and West Park Hospitals: In favour of keeping services locally 

specifically at Epsom, but: “A new build hospital on the combined site of Sutton 

and The Royal Marsden Hospital would have some benefit, which we recognise… 

however, it is on the edge of the catchment area, which would make it less 

attractive to those living on the western side… the buildings are of poor quality.” 

 Local members of parliament: The following members of parliament have written 

with their broad support for a specialist acute facility on one of the three sites 

(however, they have different views on which of the sites this should be built): 

 Sir Paul Beresford MP for Mole Valley 

 Crispin Blunt MP for Reigate 

 Tom Brake MP for Carshalton and Wallington 

 Stephen Hammond MP for Wimbledon, Raynes Park, Morden and 

Motspur Park 

 Paul Scully MP for Sutton and Cheam. 

 “The Board believes that there is a case to consolidate the Acute services the Trust 
provides but when these are worked up in detail they must fully consider the impact on the 

other Acute hospitals within our STP so that we do not inadvertently compromise any 
other hospitals’ clinical viability.” 

Surrey Heartlands Health and Care Partnership Transformation Board (STP) 

 “The Council generally agrees with the aim of retaining as much care as possible at the 
existing hospital sites.  However, this should be seen in the context of our overall policy 
objective of keeping people as healthy as possible within the community… The Council 

accepts that there is a strong clinical link and financial case for the concentration of 
services for those people who are most ill.” 

London Borough of Sutton Scrutiny Committee 

“Epsom and Ewell Borough Council fully supports the need for a new specialist acute 
facility within the Trust’s area which brings together services for our most sick and most 

Page 46

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

31 

 

at-risk patients, as we believe this will secure the future of the Trust and its two main 
sites… 

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council 

“The populations of Epsom and Ewell are growing and ageing. At some times we may 
need treatment in specialist hospitals further away but we can reasonably expect 95% of 
our health needs to be met properly, locally and in 21st century facilities. Although there 

are advances in tele-medicine and care at home, child birth and second tier rehabilitation 
treatment should also be accessible to us, to visits from our relatives and local to our home 

communities… Whether we live on the borders of Sutton, Kingston, Ashtead or Banstead, 
residents of Epsom and Ewell want to live no further than 30 minutes away from an 

ambulance reaching us and getting us to appropriate emergency treatment.” 

Joint letter from residents’ associations 

“We fully support the need to improve the infrastructure and environment for acute 
services across South West London and note the particular challenges at St Helier. Given 

the need for major capital investment across the South West London acute sites, it is 
important that within the options appraisal for acute services across Epsom and St Helier, 

there is careful consideration to the services that should be provided alongside the six core 
acute services, so that we have vibrant, sustainable acute hospitals at Kingston and 

Croydon and a regional centre of excellence at St George’s to go alongside the acute 
solution for Epsom and St Helier.” 

Joint response from Kingston Hospital, Croydon Health Services and St George’s 
University Hospitals CEOs and Chairs 

“Having met with the Chief Executive and Senior Managers from Epsom and St Helier 
today, I am convinced that it is essential to have a new acute care facility, otherwise the 

hospital service provided to my constituents north of Reigate and Redhill faces inevitable 
long term decline. The current facilities are out of date and the recruitment of doctors and 

nurses is increasingly challenging. It is absolutely essential that as many residents as 
possible respond to the consultation. The public need to show their support for the 
proposal to add weight to the argument for new, improved, life-saving, acute care 

facilities in order to prevent this unique opportunity from being lost.” 

Crispin Blunt MP (Reigate) 

"I am pleased to see that the Epsom and St Helier is putting together a case to secure up 
to £400m of investment to replace out of date buildings with modern purpose built 

facilities.” 

Tom Brake MP (Carshalton and Wallington) 

"This is a conversation initiated by the Epsom and St Helier... and is supported by local 
senior clinicians. I welcome the Chief Exec’s decision to listen to local people about his 

plans to seek more investment and I am glad that it is absolutely clear that St Helier 
hospital is safe." 

Stephen Hammond MP (Wimbledon, Raynes Park, Morden and Motspur Park) 

"Securing the long-term future of healthcare in Sutton has always been my top priority... I 
am pleased that Epsom and St Helier are seeking opinions from Sutton residents...making 

Page 47

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

32 

 

it clear that St Helier hospital will stay open... For the first time in years we have a 
proposal from the NHS which doesn't risk Sutton residents having to travel to St. George's 
for A&E and maternity, instead protecting them in the area already covered by the Trust." 

Paul Scully MP (Sutton and Cheam) 

 

Neutral stakeholder responses 

98. One neutral stakeholder response was received from Surrey County Council. 

“Surrey County Council supports Epsom and St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust’s need 
to engage with Surrey residents on the quality and sustainability of their local health 

services…” 

“Surrey County Council recognises the case for change to provide as much care as locally 
possible and supports the case for improving hospital services.” 

“Surrey County Council supports the Trust and commissioners taking the next step in 
working up in more detail how best to meet the needs of local residents.” 

Surrey County Council 

 

 

Stakeholder responses not in favour of the clinical model and/or scenarios 

99. Stakeholder responses not in favour included: 

 Carshalton and Wallington Labour: In particular, the group opposed 

centralisation of acute services. 

 London Borough of Merton: The council raised particular concerns about 

deprivation. This opposition included the Council Leader encouraging people to 

sign up to a campaign to build a new hospital at St Helier. 

 Merton councillors: The following Merton councillors wrote to the Trust strongly 

supporting services remaining at St Helier: 

 Cllr Agatha Akyigyina;  

 Cllr Mark Allison; 

 Cllr Stan Anderson;  

 Cllr Laxmi Attawar; 

 Cllr Caroline Cooper; 

 Cllr Pauline Cowper; 

 Cllr Nick Draper; 

 Cllr Ross Garrod;  

Page 48

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

33 

 

 Cllr Joan Henry; 

 Cllr Sally Kenny; 

 Cllr Philip Jones;  

 Cllr Dennis Pearce;  

 Cllr Geraldine Stanford;  

 Cllr Martin Whelton; and 

 Dr Rosena Allin-Khan MP (Labour Member of Parliament for Tooting), 

although we do not serve her constituency. 

 Siobhain McDonagh MP, (Labour MP for Mitcham and Morden). 

Stakeholders who do not think that this is the appropriate time to be undertaking this 

work 

100. We received one letter to this effect, from Chris Grayling MP (Conservative MP for 

Epsom and Ewell). 

Petitions  

101. A number of local campaigns mobilised the public in opposition through a range of 

means, including a petition, with responses from: 

 1,573 people who stated they would like both “the new hospital built at St 

Helier instead of Belmont or Epsom” and are “against the closure of any 

services at St Helier Hospital, including the closure of the consultant-led 

maternity unit and the A&E”; 

 134 people who “want the new hospital built at St Helier instead of Belmont or 

Epsom” only; and 

 130 people who are “against the closure of any services at St Helier Hospital, 

including the closure of the consultant-led maternity unit and the A&E” only. 

15 petitions from local groups (signed by 2,855 people) were received from local 

churches, community centres, mosques, campaign groups and political parties.  

The Trust also received seven petitions from Morden primary schools (signed by 

55 people).  These were focused on keeping services open at St Helier Hospital. 

 “The Council is committed to ensuring that the residents of Merton have access to a full 
range of NHS acute services on the St Helier Hospital site.  Any attempt to relocate acute 
services away from an area of relative deprivation in favour of an affluent one would be 

plainly incompatible with the duty on the CCG under section 145T of the NHS Act to have 
regard to the need to tackle health inequalities.” 

London Borough of Merton 

“I understand that St. Helier Hospital is at risk of losing all acute services, including major 

Page 49

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

34 

 

accident and emergency as well as consultant led maternity services. As the Member of 
Parliament for Tooting, I am extremely concerned about the impact this closure would 

have on St. George’s Hospital.” 

Dr Rosena Allin-Khan MP (Tooting) 

"The CEO of Epsom and St Helier has today launched a public discussion about the two 
hospitals arguing that emergency and high end services like maternity need to be merged 

into a new building on one site... a debate we have had many times before. I do not 
believe it is helpful to have that debate again now." 

Chris Grayling MP (Epsom and Ewell) 

In a letter responding to Epsom and St Helier 2020-2030 the MP stated: “As I understand 
it, St Helier Hospital is at risk of losing all acute services including major accident and 

emergency as well as consultant led maternity services in two-thirds of your proposals.  I 
am wholly against an engagement process that could leave St Helier Hospital’s acute 

services at threat. I have undertaken a detailed analysis of a 1 mile radius surrounding 
each of the three proposed sites for the hospital catchment area’s acute services (Rose 

Hill, Epsom and Belmont).  The statistics are shockingly definitive in that the site requiring 
any investment is Rose Hill and that, most importantly, St Helier Hospital simply cannot 

afford to lose its acute services or put them at risk.” 

Siobhain McDonagh MP (Mitcham and Morden) 

 

6.6. Key messages 

102. Local people remain very passionate about their hospitals and a large number took 

time to share their views and ask questions. 

103. Overall, the Trust believes that the public engagement has been supportive of the new 

clinical model based on the engagement undertaken to date and further consideration 

of how the Trust can achieve its aims for the next 10 years. 

104. The majority of people who responded to the engagement (either via meetings or 

individual responses to the questions the Trust asked) agreed with the Trust’s aim to 

provide as much care as possible locally by working with other local health and care 

providers from its existing hospital sites at St Helier and Epsom. The majority also 

agreed that patient care would be improved by bringing together services for the 

sickest or most at-risk patients in a new specialist acute facility on one site. 

105. Though it was not the purpose or focus of the engagement, there were many views 

given on which site the single site acute facility should be located. The majority of 

those people who gave their views on the future of one of the hospitals without 

reference to the Trust’s questions or Trust’s materials focused on saving services and 

rebuilding St Helier Hospital or building the acute facility at St Helier Hospital.  

106. Key themes that were raised throughout the engagement included: 

 access, travel times and the impact for patients, relatives and visitors 

Page 50

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

35 

 

 deprivation, healthcare needs and the location of acute hospitals 

 the need to understand which services will be in the specialist acute site and 

what will be kept local, and the evidence of why this change will improve 

outcomes for patients 

 concern over what will happen to the sites where the acute facility is not located 

in the long term 

 the need for assurance that this is for NHS patients not private patients 

 the impact of scenarios on other hospitals 

 where the investment is going to come from and how much it will cost to borrow 

the money 

 clarification around the process and next steps, including when decisions will be 

made 

 the timescale to get permission to build a new facility and what will happen to 

the sites and services in the short term. 

107. The Trust believes these are key themes that will need to be addressed in any further 

development of this work. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

36 

 

7. Initial consideration of scenario viability 

108. Analysis of scenarios has included an initial view of viability and further financial 

analysis of scenarios that appear to have greater potential. 

109. This has been informed by the feedback from the public captured in Section 6. 

110. The aim of this preliminary analysis has been to understand the broad scenarios that 

could be explored further in the future. No conclusions have been made about any 

preferred scenario; this requires further work at later stages. 

111. This initial analysis is described further below. This finding also aligns with the feedback 

received during the Trust’s engagement processes (see Section 6). 

7.1. Do nothing scenario 

112. This basic scenario requires an essential capital investment of c. £62 million in critical 

backlog maintenance (such as important building repairs, refurbishment and other vital 

maintenance work) on both sites. 

113. This is the minimum level of investment likely to be required to avoid closure in the 

short term, but it does not address the medium and longer term functional and 

technical suitability of Trust buildings, and will result in a Trust that is not physically 

suitable to deliver twenty-first century healthcare. 

114. As a result, the Trust would not be able to maintain itself at the level expected by 

regulators, which creates the risk of regulatory interventions by the Care Quality 

Commission or NHS Improvement and potential closures of key buildings at short 

notice (as some nearby trusts have experienced). 

115. Given this risk, it is assumed that in reality, this do nothing scenario would mean that 

the Trust would not exist in its present form in ten years’ time – it would be physically 

impossible to provide healthcare from the buildings due to the inability to meet basic 

Care Quality Commission, Health and Safety, NHS England and NHS Improvement 

standards. This scenario is therefore not considered further. 

  

Page 52

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

37 

 

7.2. Continuing with two acute sites 

116. A more significant investment in the two sites than in the do-nothing above could 

improve the estate at both Epsom and St Helier Hospitals. While this improves the 

estate in terms of helping the Trust to deliver great healthcare within its current 

configuration, and would meet all regulatory requirements and remove the risk of 

closure on these grounds, it does not address the key issues of clinical, workforce and 

financial viability described in Section 3. The Trust would be unable to deliver the 

required clinical model.  It also means that the Trust will continue to incur a very 

significant annual financial loss and an ever-increasing cumulative deficit – the Trust is 

expected to still have a deficit of c. £40 million by 2025/26, meaning the scenario does 

not support financial sustainability. 

117. However, some further analysis of this scenario has been undertaken in order to 

provide a point of comparison with other investment scenarios which can deliver the 

required clinical model. 

118. In particular, the Trust estimates that £398 million of capital investment would be 

needed to address the most pressing estates issues at Epsom and St Helier hospitals. 

This investment is needed to improve the current estate and meet safety standards. In 

particular, it aims to address issues around maintaining the estate raised by the Care 

Quality Commission, statutory compliance, refurbishment work on the St Helier site, 

critical infrastructure works, and the purchase of essential equipment and technology. 

There are a number of large projects which would be required, particularly at St Helier 

Hospital where significant parts of the current estate would need to be demolished 

and rebuilt to modern standards, as it is technically impossible to refurbish them to 

meet current NHS standards.  More specifically, this level of investment would result 

in: 

 better bed spacing; 

 single rooms for patients; 

 improved emergency department layout; 

 ensuring that operating theatres are all in one place; and 

 ensuring better access to blood tests, X-rays and other tests for the sickest 

patients. 

119. A lower level of investment than the £398 million would not enable the Trust to 

improve the functional suitability of its buildings to enable great healthcare for its 

patients. 

120. Of the £398 million, £142 million would be funded through existing Trust cash which 

has been set aside. An additional £48 million would be funded through external 

sources, such as borrowing from the government. Funding has not been secured for 

Page 53

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

38 

 

the remaining £208 million (see Figure 14) – this investment is consistent with level of 

estates challenge the Trust has described over a number of years. 15 

Figure 14: Continuing with two acute sites capital investment (£m, 25/26) 

 

121. This level of investment is used as the point of comparison for those scenarios that do 

deliver the clinical model, in order to capture the relative benefit of changing the way 

in which the Trust delivers healthcare. 

7.3. Three single acute site scenarios 

122. The Trust is clear that any scenario considered for the future of the Trust must meet 

four strategic criteria: 

 it must meet the needs of the local population, as described by its commissioners  

 it must be clinically viable 

 it must ensure that the current and projected workforce supply – particularly 

medical and nursing – will be able to staff the hospital without anything but 

unavoidable and infrequent recourse to agency staff 

 it must support financial sustainability. 

123. The initial analysis included in this strategic outline case suggests that delivering acute 

services to the sickest patients on a single site would meet these objectives.  However, 

there are several ways it could be delivered, using the three sites in different 

                                                      
15 In 2009, the local NHS recommended a limited rebuild of the existing hospital site at St Helier only. The Strategic Health Authority 
agreed that the outline business case – requiring £219m of additional investment – could go to the Department of Health for approval in 
2010, but the plan was then put on hold pending a South West London-wide review of acute services. Two South West London reviews, 
Healthcare for South West London (2009-10) and more recently Better Services, Better Value (2011‒13), explored different configurations 
of acute services (including whether there should be a reduction in the number of accident and emergency departments in South West 
London) but neither programme was able to address local population health needs. Therefore, the Trust continued to explore its options. 
In 2016, the Trust included an estimated capital requirement in the South West London sustainability and transformation partnership 
capital estimates to address its critical estates issues.  

Page 54

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

39 

 

configurations. The Trust has therefore undertaken an initial analysis to develop a set 

of metrics to support a comparison of scenarios. A full appraisal and evaluation across 

clinical, quality and financial criteria would be developed at the next stage should this 

strategic outline case progress, moving to a pre-consultation business case if 

consultation is required. 

124. The development of single acute site scenarios has engaged local clinicians (including 

Trust clinicians, other provider clinicians, and local GPs) and a Clinical Board (with 

representation from the Trust and local clinical commissioning groups) to develop and 

agree viable scenarios. The Trust has also taken account of the feedback from the 

public engagement process. Important criteria for any new single acute site 

development would be: 

 Local sites delivering a full range of non-acute care close to patients’ homes and 

meeting the needs of the Epsom and Sutton/Merton localities. This requires a 

community-facing presence to be maintained at the Epsom and St Helier sites in 

all scenarios, delivering the full range of outpatient, diagnostic, day surgery, 

rehabilitation and community services. This would account for approximately 85% 

of all current patient episodes. 

 A centralised site delivering a consolidated acute service for all acute 

requirements including major A&E, maternity, elective and non-elective surgery 

and inpatient medical services for the sickest patients. This would account for 

approximately 15% of the Trust’s current patient episodes. This facility could be 

sited at any one of the Epsom, St Helier or Sutton sites – each of these sites has 

the physical space available to house a new, state of the art acute facility. 

125. This results in three single-site scenarios: 

 Epsom as a primary site, with continued use of St Helier: Epsom as the site 

delivering consolidated acute services and community-facing services, with 

community-facing services at St Helier. 

 St Helier as a primary site, with continued use of Epsom: St Helier as the site 

delivering consolidated acute services and community-facing services, with 

community-facing services at Epsom. 

 Sutton as a primary site, with co-location with The Royal Marsden, and 

continued use of Epsom and St Helier: Sutton co-located with The Royal Marsden 

(and with the addition of a RMP Cancer Treatment Centre) as the site delivering 

consolidated acute services, with community-facing services at St Helier and 

Epsom. 
 

126. Two further scenarios were considered and dismissed:  

Sutton as a primary site, without co-location with The Royal Marsden  

Page 55

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

40 

 

127. Though this scenario offers similar benefits – at a similar capital cost – to co-locating 

with The Royal Marsden, it appears less viable than co-locating due to: 

 Clinical quality: Building a new acute hospital near to but not with The Royal 

Marsden on the Sutton site misses the opportunity to improve clinical care for 

both hospitals. Therefore, a stand-alone scenario would not deliver the same level 

of clinical quality as a co-located hospital. 

 Estates: The available space on the Sutton site to build a standalone acute facility 

is limited, and co-locating with The Royal Marsden offers more flexible and 

efficient uses of space that will support local plans for the London Cancer Hub. 

 Financial: Without co-location, the benefits of consolidating on the Sutton site are 

reduced as synergies with The Royal Marsden are not achieved (see Section 9.2). 

This means the stand-alone scenario is less financially beneficial than co-locating. 

This scenario would also comprise building new facilities which require more 

capital investment than refurbishing existing buildings, meaning the additional 

benefits associated with co-locating are important in supporting financial viability.  

128. These constraints and the missed opportunity from a standalone development suggest 

that a standalone acute facility at Sutton without co-locating with The Royal Marsden 

would be significantly less attractive than a co-location, (but would cost about the 

same) and therefore should not be considered further. 

No acute services scenario 

129. No longer providing any acute services from the Trust would create significant pressure 

for other healthcare services in the rest of South West London, and would mean many 

people would need to travel further for acute services. Moreover, in the engagement 

to date, no public feedback has suggested that the Trust should stop providing acute 

services. On this basis, this scenario has been deemed non-viable, and as such, the 

Trust has discounted this scenario in this strategic outline case. 

130. Four scenarios will therefore be considered in more detail in the next section in this 

strategic outline case: 

 continuing with two acute sites, (for comparison purposes) 

 Epsom as a primary site, with continued use of St Helier 

 St Helier as a primary site, with continued use of Epsom 

 Sutton as a primary site, with co-location with The Royal Marsden and continued 

use of Epsom and St Helier. 
 

Page 56

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

41 

 

8. Scenario analysis 

131. For each potentially viable scenario, the Trust has completed a preliminary analysis of 

its implications, including: 

 the impact of any changes on access and activity at a high level 

 the space required to deliver the model of care, and the best way to configure the 

sites to deliver this 

 the capital investment which could be required across the three sites to deliver 

the new model 

 the financial impact, including Trust income and expenditure and the costs of 

borrowing 

 the potential impact of the location on patient flows to neighbouring hospitals 

 the alignment of the scenario with the broader system 

 the deliverability of the scenario. 

132. The scenario analysis should be seen in the context of a number of important 

considerations, these include: 

 The analysis is based on current data, and could change if new information 

becomes available. This could include changes to capital requirements and interest 

rates, the Trust’s financial position, levels of demand, the benefits of the clinical 

model, and the initial impact on other parts of the system. 

 National planning assumptions and benchmarking have been used, where possible, 

to develop the analysis around efficiencies in particular. However, at this stage, 

detailed savings plans have not yet been identified, and as such there is a risk that 

not all efficiencies are delivered. More detailed plans will need to be developed as 

part of the next stage business cases. 

 The financial analysis assumes that the additional capital required for each scenario 

can be borrowed at a 3% loan rate from the government. This is a simplifying 

assumption and does not presume the availability or cost of capital.  

 A number of limited metrics have been estimated to support an initial comparison 

of scenarios. A broader set of metrics would need to be considered as part of 

further business cases. 

 The potential investment which could be required at neighbouring hospitals in 

particular is illustrative and has been developed based on Trust assumptions. 

Estimates have not been developed for individual hospitals and the analysis uses 

Page 57

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

42 

 

only Trust data rather than information from other providers. Further analysis will 

be required should this work progress to a next stage business case. 

133. Non-financial considerations have not been analysed in detail. This would need to be 

addressed as part of any subsequent detailed work on the scenarios. 

134. Assumptions have been aligned (where relevant and possible) with sustainability and 

transformation partnership and commissioner assumptions. 

135. In each scenario which delivers the clinical model, local services continue to be 

provided at both Epsom and St Helier Hospitals, covering c. 85% of activity. 

Consolidated acute services are then located either at Epsom Hospital, St Helier 

Hospital or Sutton Hospital (co-located with The Royal Marsden). 

8.1. Trust beds by scenario 

136. Based on an analysis of activity and a set of locally agreed assumptions, The Trust has 

estimated the number of beds which could be required on each site for the three 

scenarios; as well as the requirement for any additional beds for patients who might be 

closer to another nearby hospital. Based on this initial work, the total number of beds 

across the local system does not significantly vary (c. 992-1,022, compared to 1,048 

currently). Further work will be needed to refine these preliminary estimates, in 

particular greater detail around the underpinning assumptions. 

137. The estimated bed requirement for each scenario is summarised in Figure 15. 

Figure 15: Trust bed requirement by scenario (25/26) 

(Beds)    
Continuing with two 

acute sites 
Epsom primary St Helier primary 

Sutton primary with 
RMH 

Total beds 1,026 834 914 1,012 

Total beds including other providers 
in South West London and Surrey 

1,026 992 994 1,022 

Source: Trust analysis   

  

Page 58

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

43 

 

8.2. Financial benefits of clinical model 

138. The financial benefits of the clinical model for each scenario reflect greater economies 

of scale and scope through delivering care to the sickest patients on a single 

(consolidated) acute site.  

139. There are five components to the consolidation savings, linked to the implementation 

of the new clinical model. The greatest savings area relates to workforce, which 

reflects efficiencies in staffing and the reduction in the need for temporary/agency 

staff to staff rotas and meet quality standards. A range of other components drive 

further savings including utilising new technologies, improvements in the quality of 

buildings and Trust efficiency.  

140. The level of consolidation savings which could be achieved varies by scenario. Where 

the Trust has more scale and a larger catchment, there are expected to be greater 

opportunities for economies of scale.  

141. The consolidation savings are described in greater detail in Figure 16. The range of 

savings indicates the variation in estimated benefits by scenario. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

44 

 

Figure 16: Consolidation benefits summary (£m, 2025/26) 

Benefit Description 

Indicative 

financial 

benefits 

Workforce  

Treating the sickest patients on a single acute site will support the Trust to re-

shape its workforce to deliver the required quality standards within the existing 

workforce, rather than take on additional staff. It will also help to reduce reliance 

on agency staff, and ensure rotas are efficient.  

16 – 19 

Technology 

The new hospital facilities will include implementing digital technologies such as 

electronic patient records, which are already being used in many parts of the NHS. 

These allow patients and hospitals to view and update patient records 

electronically rather than relying on more traditional paper based systems.  

6 – 8 

Buildings that are fit for 

purpose 

There are expected to be a number of benefits from having a fit for purpose set of 

buildings. These include: 

 Reduced adverse incidents such as patient falls; 

 Increased ability to achieve commissioner quality standards; 

 Reduced costs of maintaining and operating the estate, including efficiencies 

in energy utilisation, maintenance costs, lifts and cleaning; and 

 Avoiding a number of unplanned cost pressures which are currently incurred 

each year, particularly in relation to the Trust estate and current service 

delivery model.  

11 – 13 

Efficiency 

By redesigning the clinical model, improving patient flows and building new 

facilities, the Trust hopes to be able to drive further efficiencies by reducing 

patients’ average length of stay, and helping to get patients home more quickly.  

2 – 6 

Cancer, complex and 

private services  

Improving the throughput on complex / private work is expected to offer financial 

benefits. This could involve increasing the share of income from treating private 

patients from c. 2% currently to up to c. 3%. 

4 

TOTAL   39 – 49 

Source: Trust analysis, figures may not sum exactly due to rounding 

142. Given the two acute sites scenario does not deliver the clinical model, these financial 

benefits would not be achievable in this scenario. For example, in relation to 

workforce, the estimated financial savings would not be achievable, as care would be 

delivered to the Trust’s sickest patients across two acute sites, meaning more doctors 

would be needed to meet standards, and additional nurses would be needed to 

oversee old-fashioned wards. In addition, the opportunity to implement new digital 

technologies in the two acute sites scenario is more limited. In particular, there are 

technical difficulties associated with introducing new IT and record systems within the 

existing site configuration, and any implementation would likely also be more costly as 

a result.   

143. Co-location with The Royal Marsden would be expected to provide additional benefits, 

including maximising shared services and the potential for a RMP cancer treatment 

centre.  

Page 60

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

45 

 

144. These further benefits associated with the co-location are described in Figure 17 and 

are based on a range of benchmarks, which will need to be developed further should 

next stage business cases be developed. 

Figure 17: Consolidation savings from The Royal Marsden co-location (£m, 2025/26) 

Benefit Description  

Indicative 

financial 

benefits 

Support services 

Sharing support services – including facilities management – could reduce support 

costs beyond the financial benefits described above. Specific improvements 

included include: cleaning, laundry, energy costs and water usage. 

4 

Cancer services 
Cancer services, other complex services and delivering private work and cancer 

services via RM Partners will provide the Trust with greater activity.  
2 

Clinical synergies 
Clinical synergies will improve productivity by avoiding unnecessary tests and 

patient transfers.  
1 

Clinical support services 
Sharing support services, including radiology, will improve utilisation and reduce 

wastage. 
<1 

RM Partners 

Working with RM Partners to deliver a shared RMP cancer treatment centre will 

provide further efficiencies by increasing activity, improving utilisation and 

supporting better procurement. 

<1 

TOTAL   8 

Source: Trust analysis, figures may not sum exactly due to rounding 

145. The Trust expects to drive efficiencies of between £39 million and £57 million 

(depending on the scenario) by 2025/26 on the basis of the consolidation benefits and 

the potential further benefits associated with The Royal Marsden co-location. 

  

Page 61

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

46 

 

8.3. Capital investment 

146. The estimated capital investment required to deliver each scenario is summarised in 

Figure 18. 

147. The methodology adopted is prescribed by the Department of Health and requires use 

of a specific model that ensures all aspects of building costs are included and 

allowances are made for optimism bias and contingency. The Trust has decided to use 

the standard framework for outline business cases to ensure that these potentially 

significant costs are understood as much as possible at this stage. 

148. Around £190 million of capital investment is already secured but more is required to 

deliver the clinical model. Figure 18 shows the additional capital investment which 

would be required.  In the two acute sites scenario, for example, £208 million (of the 

£398 million) is currently unfunded. 

Figure 18: Currently unfunded capital investment requirement by scenario (£m, to 25/26)
16

 

 Continuing with 
two acute sites 

Epsom primary St Helier 
primary 

Sutton primary 
with RMH 

Additional capital requirement – currently 
unfunded 

208 291 356 416 

Source: Trust analysis  

149. The capital investment estimates do not include any further capital investment which 

would be required at neighbouring hospitals as a result of the Trust’s planned changes.  

150. The additional investment at neighbouring hospitals has been estimated based on the 

number of new beds which may need to be provided at these hospitals due to the 

Trust’s service changes. The cost has been estimated based on applying a simple 

assumption of £0.5 million per additional bed required.17 Further work is required to 

refine these figures.  

151. Figure 19 summarises these additional investments.  

                                                      
16 The total capital investment required for each scenario includes the cost of new buildings such as departmental costs, on-works, fees, 
as well as planning contingency and optimism bias as required by the national guidance. The total capital investment also includes 
additional costs such as backlog maintenance, equipment and IT, and planned expenditure for land purchases. 
17 This assumption has been developed based on the Trust’s implied capital investment cost per bed in this document. The £0.5m per bed 
reflects a combination of re-furbished facilities and new facilities which are typically more expensive to build.  

Page 62

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

47 

 

Figure 19: Capital investment which could be required at neighbouring hospitals by scenario (£m, to 25/26) 

 Continuing with 
two acute sites 

Epsom primary St Helier 
primary 

Sutton primary 
with RMH 

Net Trust capital investment with no 
planned funding 

208 291 356 416 

(+) Additional capital investment which could 
be required at neighbouring hospitals 

- 
86 

(c. 172 beds) 
40 

(c. 80 beds)  
28 

(c. 55 beds)  

Total net capital investment with no 
planned funding (including both the Trust 
and neighbouring hospitals) 

208 377 396 444 

Source: Trust analysis  

8.4. Outputs of scenario analysis  

152. A summary of each of the three scenarios that support the clinical model, plus the 

continuing with two acute sites scenario, is included below. Included for each scenario 

is:  

 A graphic depicting the scenario (except the continuing with two acute sites 

scenario, where the buildings remain as-is externally). 

 A map of the Trust’s catchment population, showing the population around the 

primary site where the accident and emergency centre is. 

 A summary of the services provided on each site. 

 The estimated 2025-26 bed base for the Trust and the additional bed demand 

which would need to be provided at neighbouring providers in South West 

London and Surrey, based on changes in demand driven by the Trust’s service 

changes.18  

 The required net capital investment, over and above capital expenditure which 

already has funding secured. 

 The in-year revenue position, which is the difference between income and 

expenditure for the Trust in 2025/26 for the scenario. 

 The Trust’s return on investment, which measures the financial benefit of the 

scenario compared to the capital investment required. It is defined as the total 

financial benefit over and above the two acute sites scenario (i.e. the change in 

the 25/26 in year position compared to the two acute sites deficit of c. £40m) 

relative to the net capital investment required to deliver the scenario. A positive 

return on investment demonstrates an improvement compared to the two acute 

sites scenario. As the scenarios are measured relative to the two acute sites 

scenario, the two acute sites scenario itself does not have a return on investment, 

given it does not enable the clinical model and achieve the financial benefits. The 

                                                      
18 This additional bed demand is distinct from the additional beds which may need to be built, given the investment to build additional 
beds considers only the new capacity which may be required, rather than considering both a greater bed requirement in some areas and a 
smaller bed requirement in others. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

48 

 

purpose of including this measure is to provide a preliminary indication of the 

benefits of the scenarios. Further work will be required to refine this analysis.  

 The wider system capital costs, reflecting the potential additional investment at 

neighbouring hospitals, based on changes in demand (and therefore beds which 

may need to be built) driven by the Trust’s service changes. The cost of this 

investment has been estimated based on applying a simplifying assumption of 

£0.5 million per additional bed required.  

 The wider return on investment, defined as the Trust’s return on investment 

above, but also accounting for the potential additional investment at 

neighbouring hospitals (i.e. the wider system capital costs). The running costs 

associated with the additional demand have been estimated based on the Trust’s 

cost and income structures rather than the other providers’ data. 

153. This analysis is based on preliminary work and further detailed analysis would be 

needed as part of any subsequent business case developments. However, the work 

would form a basis for this more detailed analysis.  

Page 64

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

49 

 

Figure 20: Continuing with two acute sites scenario 

Catchment c. 490,000 

 

Services provided 

Epsom Hospital St Helier Hospital Sutton Hospital 

 Retains all existing services  

 

 Retains all existing services  

 

 No services provided 

 Site disposed 

 

Total beds 

Trust Wider system change TOTAL 

1,026 - 1,026 

Finances 

Required net capital investment (£m) (208) 

In-year revenue position (2025/26) (£m)  (40) 

Source: Trust analysis   

Page 65

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

50 

 

Figure 21: Epsom primary scenario summary 

Potential outline design of Epsom Hospital  Catchment c. 295,000 

 
 

Services provided 

Epsom Hospital St Helier Hospital Sutton Hospital 

 Major A&E 

 Critical care  

 Emergency surgery 

 Complex emergency medicine  

 Inpatient paediatrics  

 Births  

 Outpatients 

 Diagnostics 

 Planned care procedures 

 Elderly care rehabilitation  

 SWLEOC 

 Local A&E (urgent treatment 

centre) 

 Outpatients 

 Diagnostics 

 Non-complex planned care 

procedures 

 Elderly care rehabilitation  

 Eye care 

 Chemotherapy 

 

 

 No services provided 

 Site disposed 

 

Total beds 

Trust Wider system change TOTAL 

834 158 992 

Finances 

In-year revenue position (2025/26) (£m)  (4) 

Trust return on investment (%) 12% 

Required net capital investment (£m) (291) 

Wider system capital costs (£m) (86) 

Wider return on investment (%) 7% 

Source: Trust analysis  

  

Page 66

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

51 

 

Figure 22: St Helier primary scenario summary 

Potential outline design of St Helier Hospital  Catchment c. 369,000 

  

Services provided 

Epsom Hospital St Helier Hospital Sutton Hospital 

 Local A&E (urgent treatment 

centre) 

 Outpatients 

 Diagnostics 

 Non-complex planned care 

procedures 

 Elderly care rehabilitation  

 Eye care 

 Chemotherapy 

 SWLEOC 

 Major A&E 

 Critical care  

 Emergency surgery 

 Complex emergency 

medicine  

 Inpatient paediatrics  

 Births  

 Outpatients 

 Diagnostics 

 Planned care procedures 

 Elderly care rehabilitation 

 

 No services provided 

 Site disposed 

 

Total beds 

Trust Wider system change TOTAL 

914 80 994 

Finances 

In-year revenue position (2025/26) (£m)  (4) 

Trust return on investment (%) 10% 

Required net capital investment (£m) (356) 

Wider system capital costs (£m) (40) 

Wider return on investment (%) 8% 

Source: Trust analysis 

  

Page 67

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

52 

 

Figure 23: Sutton primary (with The Royal Marsden) scenario summary 

Potential outline design of co-located Sutton Hospital Catchment c. 418,000 

 
Note: the red colour indicates Royal Marsden buildings   

Services provided  

Epsom Hospital St Helier Hospital Sutton Hospital 

 Local A&E (urgent treatment 

centre) 

 Outpatients 

 Diagnostics 

 Non-complex planned care 

procedures 

 Elderly care rehabilitation  

 Eye care 

 Chemotherapy 

 SWLEOC 

 Local A&E (urgent treatment 

centre) 

 Outpatients 

 Diagnostics 

 Non-complex planned care 

procedures 

 Elderly care rehabilitation  

 Eye care 

 Chemotherapy 

 Major A&E 

 Critical care  

 Emergency surgery 

 Complex emergency medicine  

 Inpatient paediatrics  

 Births  

 RM Partners Cancer treatment 

centre (RMP CTC)  

 Cancer diagnostics (RM 

Partners) 

Total beds 

Trust Wider system change TOTAL 

1,012 10 1,022 

Finances 

In-year revenue position (2025/26) (£m)  5 

Trust return on investment (%) 11% 

Required net capital investment (£m) (416) 

Wider system capital costs (£m) (28) 

Wider return on investment (%) 10% 

Source: Trust analysis   

Page 68

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

53 

 

8.5. Summary of scenarios 

154. The Trust analysis suggests that all three scenarios where care for the sickest patients 

is consolidated on to a single acute site offer significant advantages over the two acute 

sites scenario (c. £36 – £45 million). On the basis of the initial analysis, the difference in 

total financial benefit between the three single-site scenarios is relatively small; there 

is up to a c. £9 million difference between them (or c. 2% of current Trust income). This 

is illustrated in Figure 24.  

Figure 24: All three scenarios significantly improve the financial position (2025-26 in-year position, £m) 

 

Source: Trust analysis  

155. A significant capital investment is required to deliver each scenario. However, the Trust 

return on investment is c. 10–12% depending on the scenario.  

156. Considering the wider return on investment to the system – including the investment 

that would be required at neighbouring hospitals – decreases the return on 

investment. Due to changes in catchment, the Epsom primary scenario decreases by 

more than the two other primary scenarios. 

157. No preferred scenario can be identified at this stage. At this stage, only the initial 

viability of scenarios has been considered; none of the scenarios have been assessed 

against any formally agreed criteria.  

158. Further work is needed with commissioners and the public to define broader criteria 

for assessment of different scenarios and further analysis is required to understand the 

performance of different scenarios against these. 

159. However, the engagement process has suggested a number of themes for criteria that 

are important to local people, for example travel distances and variations in indices of 

Page 69

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

54 

 

deprivation between the immediate catchments of the various sites. The local 

commissioners will need to work with stakeholders and the public to determine the 

non-financial criteria that should be included when evaluating the scenarios in the 

future. 

160. The Trust has also not completed an equalities impact assessment at this stage; this 

may be a requirement in a later stage.  

8.6. Funding for scenarios 

161. For each scenario there is a significant net capital investment required, where the full 

funding requirement has not currently been secured.  

162. The financial analysis assumes that the additional capital required for each scenario 

can be borrowed at a 3% loan rate from the government. Financing may be available 

form a range of other routes including commercial borrowing, charitable donations 

and PF2 (the reformed private finance initiative).  

163. As an example, an initial analysis has been undertaken on the potential scenario of 

funding part of the capital investment through an illustrative private financing funding 

scheme (based on PF2-type assumptions). At this stage this analysis has been limited to 

one scenario as an example to illustrate the potential impact based on a specific set of 

assumptions. The scenario with the greatest new build element has been selected – 

the Sutton with The Royal Marsden co-location scenario. This is intended to be 

illustrative, as a single scenario was needed, and does not imply a preferred scenario or 

preclude appraisal or evaluation of different scenarios; financing of all scenarios would 

be required as part of a full evaluation and comparison.  

164. The initial analysis suggests that the 2025-26 in-year position of the scenario could 

decrease by c. £10 – £15 million in the PF2 option under the assumptions, driven 

mainly by the increased financing costs. The overall return on investment would also 

decrease.  

165. This analysis is preliminary and the purpose is to provide an initial indication of the 

potential link between the strategic outline case scenarios and potential alternative 

funding models. There are many more factors which mean these options cannot be 

reliably compared at this stage, including risk transfer, availability of finance, and value 

for money analysis. 

166. In addition, there is uncertainty around the future of overall funding for services, 

particularly after 2020/21. However, best estimates of funding projections suggest that 

across all the scenarios included in the strategic outline case, the share of funding 

available which is likely to be provided to the Trust either falls (or stays the same if 

overall funding growth is lower), suggesting the scenarios included in the strategic 

outline case are affordable. The overall analysis around funding and affordability, 

however, is based on broad assumptions at this stage and will require further work. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

55 

 

9. Conclusion 

167. In the next ten years, the Trust faces a range of clinical, financial and estates 

challenges. 

168. Based on the analysis in this strategic outline case, continuing with the current 

configuration of providing care to the sickest patients across two acute sites will mean 

the Trust will be increasingly unable to meet clinical standards, working from buildings 

that are unfit and financially unsustainable. In particular, it is clear that maintaining the 

current two acute site configuration will not enable the Trust to address these 

fundamental issues. Addressing these issues requires the Trust to consider both how it 

can deliver care differently in the future and the different ways it can organise itself to 

deliver this. 

169. Therefore, the Trust needs to consider a clinical model. Specifically, it needs a model 

that supports local plans to help deliver more person-centred care locally and closer to 

patients’ homes whilst consolidating specialist acute services on one of its sites.  

170. Based on an initial analysis, such a clinical model appears to be clinically viable, 

potentially financially viable and supported by the public the Trust has engaged with. 

171. This strategic outline case suggests that there are three scenarios that deliver the 

clinical model and that are worth further consideration as part of a further business 

case (potentially including a pre-consultation business case if consultation is required): 

 Epsom as a primary site, with continued use of St Helier;  

 St Helier as a primary site, with continued use of Epsom; and 

 Sutton as a primary site, with co-location with The Royal Marsden and continued 

use of Epsom and St Helier.  

172. A two acute site scenario will also need to be considered alongside these three 

scenarios, for comparison purposes; however, initial analysis suggests this is unlikely to 

be viable, as this cannot achieve any of the advantages – clinical, workforce and 

financial – of providing care to the sickest patients on a single acute site.  

173. If acute services are not consolidated on a single site for the sickest patients and those 

most at risk of becoming acutely unwell, as described in its clinical model, then the 

Trust maintains its view that the wider NHS will need to develop a set of plans to 

ensure that high quality acute services are provided for the local population.  

174. Based on this, the work undertaken by the Trust suggests that it should support the 

wider NHS to proceed with the further development of different scenarios to deliver 

clinical and financial viability. This may include the development of a pre-consultation 

business case, if consultation is required, and further business cases. 

Page 71

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

56 

 

175. An indicative timeline for next steps is included below. These are indicative; a 

programme plan would need to be developed by the relevant parties during the next 

stage. 

Figure 25: Indicative timeline for next steps 

Activity Indicative timeline 

Agreement to proceed  December 2017 

Pre-consultation / outline business case completed (if required) June 2018 

Public consultation (if required) Summer/autumn 2018 

Decision on outcome of public consultation Spring 2019 

Source: Trust analysis based on discussions with the local system 

176. If the Trust was to proceed with developing new facilities, it is initially envisaged that 

these could be open in 2024-26. This would be subject to an intense period of work 

including developing planning permissions and producing a full business case.  

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

57 

 

10. Recommendation 

177. The Trust Board is asked to approve the content and conclusions of this strategic 

outline case. 

178. The Trust Board is asked to approve the submission of the strategic outline case to NHS 

Improvement, the Trust’s regulator. 

179. The Trust Board is asked to approve the submission of the strategic outline case to the 

Sutton Local Transformation Board as the Trust’s input into their component of the 

South West London sustainability and transformation partnership refresh due to be 

concluded at the end of November. 

180. The Trust Board is asked to submit the strategic outline case to the Surrey Heartlands 

sustainability and transformation partnership and NHS England for their consideration. 

181. The Trust Board is asked to approve sending the strategic outline case to every person 

and organisation who responded to the engagement. 

182. The Trust Board is asked to approve that the Trust will support the wider NHS to: 

 Review the evidence presented in this strategic outline case for the Trust’s 

proposed clinical model, which supports the Trust to be clinically and financially 

viable in the future. This includes the feedback from the engagement process that 

has supported the clinical model described in this strategic outline case. 

 Note that the Trust’s analysis, including feedback from the engagement exercise, 

has not identified any alternative scenarios whereby the Trust can improve its 

clinical and financial viability to a greater extent than the scenarios presented in 

the strategic outline case.  

 Support the South West London and Surrey Heartlands sustainability and 

transformation partnerships to consider whether the Trust moving to a single site 

for its sickest and most at-risk patients would materially improve the clinical and 

financial viability of the Trust and the South West London and Surrey Heartlands 

healthcare economies. 

 Support further work to consider and assess the scenarios presented in this 

strategic outline case, meeting the regulatory requirements and due process. If it 

is decided that a formal public consultation is required, this is expected to include 

working with commissioners to support the commissioner-led development of a 

pre-consultation business case. This would build on the preliminary work included 

in this strategic outline case. 

 Based on this, establish relevant joint governance structures to oversee further 

work, including the three clinical commissioning groups most affected by the 

Page 73

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



STRATEGIC OUTLINE CASE  

58 

 

Trust’s proposed clinical model (Sutton, Surrey Downs and Merton clinical 

commissioning groups).  

 Support the work of commissioners to evaluate the relative merits of the different 

scenarios, building on the outputs from the Trust’s previous engagement 

activities. Key outputs from the Trust’s engagement, which it recommends 

commissioners consider in detail, include: 

 travel times and estimating travel time impacts for different groups of 

patients, relatives and visitors; 

 deprivation, healthcare needs and the location of acute hospitals;  

 an assessment of any equalities impact and other patient impacts; and  

 the impact of scenarios on other providers. 

 Develop a timeline for the further work required that enables the local system to 

reach a shared view of the preferred scenario(s) that the public can be formally 

consulted on. In view of the Trust’s conclusions about its clinical viability, it is 

important that this work is undertaken quickly. The Trust believes the NHS should 

aim to make its final determination by spring 2019 to enable new facilities to 

open from 2024 (given business case approval and building lead times).  

 

   

Page 74

Agenda Item 4
Annex 2



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

HOME FROM HOSPITAL PROPOSAL

Head of Service/Contact: Ian Dyer, Head of Operational Services
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): None
Other available papers (not 
attached):

None

Report summary

The purpose of this report is to request permission to undertake Home from 
Hospital pilot project for a period of a year commencing on the 1st October 
2018.

Recommendation (s)

(1) That the Committee agrees:

That a Home from Hospital pilot project be undertaken for a period of one 
year commencing on 1st October 2018.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 Establishment of a Home from Hospital service, would strengthen the 
provision of services that we offer and build on our key priorities of 
“supporting our community” and “managing our resources” by delivering 
efficiency savings and cost reductions

2 Background

2.1 Surrey Downs Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has asked the 
borough and district councils that make up the Surrey Downs catchment 
area to consider the possibility of delivering a Home from Hospital service 
from 1 October 2018. These borough and districts are Epsom & Ewell 
Borough Council, Elmbridge Borough Council, Mole Valley District 
Council, Reigate and Banstead Borough Council 

2.2 This request is on a one-year pilot project, which will be measured for its 
success by auditors engaged by the CCG. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 5



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

3 Proposals

3.1 The Home from Hospital service is for vulnerable adults without any 
immediate support available from family or friends that could facilitate their 
return home after discharge from hospital.

3.2 The aim of this service is to deliver short-term intensive support to the 
patient enabling them to access and use existing services that the 
borough supplies locally.

3.3 The Home from Hospital service may require us to transport patients from 
hospital to their home within the borough boundary or meet them at their 
home on their discharge from hospital

3.4 On arrival at their home an initial assessment of the patients’ needs will be 
carried out by one of the Council’s driver technicians. This assessment 
will take into consideration any hazards that may cause trips or falls, 
whether the patient can manage to go up and down the stairs.  A further 
boiler/heating/lighting check will be carried out by the Handyman service. 
Further assements will be completed to ensure that there are food and 
hydration provisions, and if needed supply an emergency pack of home 
essentials, milk, tea or coffee etc. which will be paid for by the patient. 

3.5 Where small works are needed (such as moving a bed to the ground floor, 
or fitting a grab rail), this will be carried out by our Handyman service. If 
required the handyman would fit a key safe to enable the hospital 
rehabilitation team to gain access to the person’s home.

3.6 In the first 24 hours post discharge, we would contact the person to check 
what support is need, we would then signpost them in the direction of 
services that would be helpful to their needs.

3.7 This offer will include services that we supply at the current rate set in 
fees and charges such as: 

 Transport from home, 

 Meals at home, 

 Shopping service, 

 Community alarm + 

  Handyman service. 

 Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)

Patients would be required to pay the relevant fees and charges for these 
services as they are not included within the CCG payment to the Council. 

Page 76

Agenda Item 5



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

3.8 We would also signpost to other services depending on the persons 
needs such as:

 Age Concern Epsom (befriending service

 Citizens Advice

 Local pharmacy for prescription blister packs from their doctor

 Domestic home help 

This list is not exhaustive.

3.9 We would continue to make appropriate contact for up to a six-week 
period following discharge from hospital. This is with the view to help the 
person live independently in their own home for as long and as 
comfortably as possible.

3.10 The Community services team combines Transport from home, Meals at 
home and Community alarm + all of which have the tailored skills to 
ensure the best possible return to home for the patient. 

3.11 The estimates of patients needing this service within the Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s catchment area is 350 per annum, divided 
equally between the four boroughs and districts this would equate to 88 
clients per year for us.

3.12 Surrey Downs CCG is offering the Council £20,300 for this service for 12 
months starting on the 1st October 2018.

3.13 A legal agreement is to be drafted, and we would insist on a ceiling 
number of 100 patients per annum, giving revenue allowance of £203.00 
for each hospital discharge case we manage.

3.14 The days and hours of operation will be Monday to Friday during core 
operational hours. 

3.15 This trial pilot project of Home from Hospital will be extended if shown to 
be successful.

3.16 Surrey County Council, who are handling the project on behalf of the 
Surrey Downs CCG, have advised there is no Transfer of Undertakings 
Protection of Employment Regulations (TUPE) rights associated with this 
offer. This being the case we can use current resources to fulfil this 
agreement. 

Page 77

Agenda Item 5



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

3.17 Referrals for the service are to be taken at one central point of contact 
and then triaged out to four boroughs within the Surrey Downs CCG area. 
This will be managed by Mole Valley District Council who operates a 
monitoring centre that specialises in community care. All other local 
authorities invited to take part in the pilot have agreed in principle to take 
part in it.

3.18 The project will showcase our services to the Surrey Downs CCG which in 
turn gives us a platform to access future commissioning opportunities.

3.19 Our services supporting this project are well established and have 
currently spare resources and the skill set needed within our set-up to 
support this pilot of Home from hospital.

3.20 Officers propose that we accept the offer to be part of this one-year pilot 
scheme.

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 Surrey Downs CCG’s funding of £20,300 covers the cost of running this 
pilot in year one for 100 hospital discharge client referrals.

4.2 Monday to Friday in our operating hours, the service will be covered within 
existing resources.

4.3 Any operations out of regular operating hours will be covered by the funds 
provided from Surrey Downs CCG.

4.4 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: 
It is anticipated that the pilot project will be operated at net nil cost to the 
Council.

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 Monitoring Officer’s comments: A contract must be in place between all 
relevant parties prior to the commencement of the pilot in order that the 
eligibility for the scheme, each party’s responsibilities, financing, 
standards and review provisions are clearly set out. If the committee 
approves the pilot project, Legal Services must be involved at an early 
stage in order that contract can be in place prior to the pilot commencing. 

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1 This project would support the vulnerable adults of Epsom & Ewell 
Borough Council. 

7 Partnerships

7.1 Epsom & Ewell Borough Council would be working in Partnership with 
Surrey Downs Clinical Commissioning Group and Surrey County Council.

Page 78

Agenda Item 5



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

7.2 Epsom & Ewell Borough would also be working in partnership with 
Elmbridge Borough Council, Mole Valley District Council, Reigate and 
Banstead Borough Council who are in the catchment area of mid Surrey.

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 The service would cease if no further funding is provided by the Surrey 
Downs CCG’s following the pilot of a year.

8.2 Demand for our services would need to be managed to ensure capacity 
on the possible increase of demand from the hospital discharges.

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 It is recommended that we undertake this pilot project for a period of one 
year and review its operation at the end of that time to view the impact on 
our services.

9.2 If the pilot is successful and commissioned to continue we will be able to 
seek to continue our involvement in year 2, subject to funding being 
provided.

Ward(s) Affected: (All Wards);

Page 79

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

REVIEW OF CAFES IN PARKS

Head of Service/Contact: Ian Dyer, Head of Operational Services
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annex 1 – Location Suitability Table

Other available papers (not 
attached):

Minutes of the meetings of the Community 
and Wellbeing Committee, 14 June 2016, 9 
October 2017.

Report summary
To review the provision of cafes in parks and open spaces.

Recommendation (s)

That the Committee:

(1) Approves the proposals for provision of cafes in parks as set out in 
section 6 of this report.

(2) Agrees that once applications are received and the initial review process 
is complete that the final decision on preferred operators be delegated 
to the Head of Operational Services in consultation with the Chairman of 
the Community and Wellbeing Committee.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and Sustainable 
Community Strategy

1.1 The establishment of a business selling refreshments within our parks or 
open spaces could support the council’s Key Priorities of “keeping our 
Borough Clean and Green” and “Managing our Resources”. Providing café 
facilities may enhance the public’s enjoyment of the park and may generate 
a new source of income for the Council.

Page 81

Agenda Item 6



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

2 Background

2.1 At the June 2016 meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 
members agreed in principle for officers to explore the sale of refreshments 
from part of the pavilion in Auriol Park. After a series of negotiations with an 
independent provider, the Auriol Park Café opened for business in 2017.

2.2 At the October 2017 meeting of the Community and Wellbeing Committee, 
a question from the public was received by the Committee which asked it 
to consider a proposal to build a community Café in Alexandra Park.

2.3 In response to this request, the committee made a commitment to review 
current café operations, both internally run (such as the café facility in 
Bourne Hall) and independently run (such as the café facility in Auriol Park).  
As both facilities started trading around the same time, comparisons could 
be made to judge the success of both models.  This information would then 
be used to inform proposals for further café sites across the borough.

3 In-house cafe facility at Bourne Hall

3.1 When the Bourne Hall café catering contract expired in 2017, members 
agreed to a proposal to bring the facility in-house, operated and managed 
by the Council’s staff.

3.2 The in-house cafe has been trading for about a year and the facility has 
proved popular with the public and deemed a success both operationally 
and financially.

3.3 Based on this initial success, there are now proposals to extend the facility 
on to the patio, which adjoins Bourne Hall.  This extension will allow visitors 
to enjoy refreshments whilst taking in views of the park and the pond.

3.4 In contrast to offering café facilities in parks, operating the Bourne Hall Café 
in-house posed a low risk to the Council.  The infrastructure to support the 
café was already in situ and the facility benefits from a comfortable, heated, 
indoor seating area with toilet facilities and continuous footfall all year 
round, as users visit the library, museum, exhibitions and other events held 
at the venue.

4 Privately owned and managed café facility in Auriol Park

4.1 In 2017, a small area of Auriol Pavilion and adjoining patio was leased by 
the Council to an independent café provider.

4.2 The first year of trading has revealed some challenges, mainly due to low 
footfall and lack of covered seating during the colder months.

Page 82

Agenda Item 6



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

4.3 The lack of toilet facilities for customers has also raised concerns and there 
have been repeated requests from the public for the decommissioned 
toilets, located on the outside of the Pavilion, to be reopened.  However, 
the cost to the Council linked to reopening and maintaining these toilet 
facilities far exceeds the rental income received from the café lease.

4.4 To develop the business, the proprietor of the business has applied for 
and been granted permission to extend their offer by building a removable 
conservatory adjacent to the current kiosk.  This will offer customers a 
comfortable, sheltered place to sit and will allow the proprietor the 
opportunity to trade all year round. 

4.5 Furthermore, there is a push from the proprietor to increase footfall in the 
park by offering more events and attractions, current ideas include outdoor 
table tennis tables and a running track. 

5 Considerations for further proposals

5.1 A great deal has been learnt from evaluating these first operating models. 
Key points to consider are:

5.1.1 Length of lease to ensure viability of investment versus protection of 
Council asset.

5.1.2 Permissions required i.e. planning consent and approval from Fields 
in Trust, which applies to parks that have been granted Queen 
Elizabeth II status and King George V Playing Fields.

5.1.3 Provision and upkeep of sheltered seating area.

5.1.4 Provision and upkeep of toilet facilities. 

5.1.5 Pressure on the Council for more or improved facilities, activities and 
events to ensure continuous footfall, which must be balanced against 
the cost of administration, capital investment, revenue required to 
upkeep facilities and simply the desire of others for quiet enjoyment 
of the parks and open spaces.

6 Proposals

6.1 On balance, officers propose that the opportunity to provide cafes in parks 
should be advertised to independent operators who will be invited to submit 
an application and business plan detailing their proposals.

6.2 Interested parties will be advised upfront of their obligations to obtain all 
necessary consents and fund the provision and upkeep of all buildings, 
seating areas and existing or new toilet facilities.

6.3 Proposals will be accepted for both static and mobile facilities and officers 
will review each application based on its suitability and viability for each 
location (please see Annex 1 for location suitability table).

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

6.4 Proposals for new buildings will only be accepted for temporary structures, 
which can be removed if the business discontinues for whatever reason.  In 
this case, the Council will request a bond to enable us to return the land to 
its original condition should the need arise.

6.5 For parks with lower footfall, applications for high quality mobile catering 
facilities will be welcomed and licences could be granted for seasonal or 
specific days.  This option may suit ice-cream vendors or other established 
mobile catering operatives.  Mobile operatives would not be expected to 
provide toilet facilities.

6.6 It is recommended that the Committee delegates the final decision on 
preferred operators including length of lease/licence (once the review 
process is complete) to the Head of Operational Services in consultation 
with the Chairman of the Community and Wellbeing Committee.

6.7 As catering provisions are already in place at the Harrier Centre/Poole 
Road Recreation Ground, Bourne Hall, Auriol Park, Nonsuch Park and 
Ewell Court Park, they have been excluded from the locations for which 
proposals will be considered (Annex 1). 

7 Financial and Manpower Implications

7.1 Officer time will be required from Legal/Property Services, Finance and 
Operational Services.

7.2 There may be some costs involved with advertising the business 
opportunity, advertising the disposal of open space where applicable and 
the preparation of leases/licences.

7.3 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: Proposals will need to be carefully 
investigated to ensure that the Council is not exposed to potential ongoing 
costs or obligations.

8 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

8.1 There will be legal implications in preparing Heads of Terms and 
Leases/Licences.

8.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments:  Prior to moving this proposal forward, 
the Legal Team should be asked to undertake reports on title for all 
proposed sites to ensure that there are no restrictions on having fixed or 
mobile food outlets within the parks and open spaces. Further consideration 
needs to be given to the approach the council intends to take in relation to 
each site such as whether the opportunities will be by way of tender or if a 
more general application process will be undertaken. This is particularly 
important if a lease of more than 7 years is being considered at any site as 
the council has a legal obligation to obtain the best consideration possible 
in these circumstances. In addition, any disposal of open space including 
the leasing of an area requires the disposal to be advertised.

Page 84

Agenda Item 6



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

9 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

9.1 Officers are keen to ensure that all proposals for café provisions in parks 
are sustainable and do not cause extra burden on council resources.

9.2 In addition, operators will need to consider measures to ensure the safety 
of their staff and other park users, refuse disposal and the extra litter that 
may be generated because of their outlet.

10 Partnerships

10.1 The success of this proposal will rely on forming strong partnerships with 
independent café proprietors and managing the relationships between the 
incoming proprietor and existing park stakeholders. 

11 Risk Assessment

11.1 There is a risk that there will be little interest in this new opportunity or that 
a lot of officer time is spent negotiating with potential operators and 
proposals fail to come to fruition. 

12 Conclusion and Recommendations

12.1 It is recommended that the Committee approves the proposals set out in 
section 6.

12.2 It is recommended that once the initial review process is completed, the 
final decision on preferred operators is delegated to the Head of 
Operational Services in consultation with the Chairman of the Community 
and Wellbeing Committee.

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards);

Page 85

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86



Annexe One - Opportunities for Cafes in Parks

Location Features/Facilities
Fields in 
Trust Status Footfall Suitability

Recommended 
Provision Type

Other 
Considerations

Alexandra Park  Martial Arts Centre
 Bowling Green
 3 Tennis courts
 5 Football pitches
 2 Cricket squares
 Basket Ball
 Outdoor Table Tennis
 2 Pavilions
 Multi Use Games Area
 Playground

Yes Medium/High High  Static
 High quality  

mobile

 No public toilets
 limited existing 

space in pavilion

Horton Country 
Park

 Ancient woodlands
 hay meadows
 ponds (NB No fishing)
 BBQ picnic area

No High High  Static  Existing 
buildings

 Public Toilets

Rosebery Park  Town Centre location
 Pond
 Playground

Yes High High  Static
 High quality  

mobile

 No existing 
buildings

 No public toilets
Court Recreation 
Ground - 

 Vets Surgery
 Bowling Green
 3G Astro Turf 
 3 Tennis Courts/Netball
 5 Football Pitches 
 2 Pavilions
 Parkour
 Playground

Yes Medium/High Medium  Static
 High quality 

mobile

 No existing 
buildings

 No public toilets

Longrove 
Recreation Ground

 Skatepark
 Playground

Yes Medium/High Medium  High quality  
mobile

 No existing 
buildings

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 1



Location Features/Facilities
Fields in 
Trust Status Footfall Suitability

Recommended 
Provision Type

Other 
Considerations
 No public toilets

Gibraltar 
Recreation 
Ground 

 Bowling Green
 3 Football Pitches
 1 Cricket square, 
 Pavilion, 
 3 Tennis Courts
 Outdoor gym
 Playground

Yes low/medium Medium  High quality 
mobile

 No public toilets
 limited existing 

space in pavilion

Shadbolt Park  Doctor's Surgery
 Day Lily Garden (run by volunteers)
 Pond
 Playground
 Outdoor gym

No low Low  Not 
recommended 
for any 
provision due 
to low 
suitability

 No existing 
buildings

 No public toilets

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 1



Community & Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

CORPORATE PLAN: KEY PRIORITY TARGETS FOR 2018 TO 2019                    

Report summary
This report provides a list of all the Key Priority Targets for 2018 to 2019.

Recommendation (s)

(1) That the Committee reviews and agrees its Key Priority Targets for                
2018 to 2019 as detailed in Annexe 1 of this report and outlined in 
paragraph 2.1.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and Sustainable 
Community Strategy

1.1 This report covers year three of the Key Priorities for the Corporate Plan. 

2 Background

2.1 The Council has a four-year Corporate Plan for the period 2016 to 2020.  

Head of Service/Contact: Gillian  McTaggart, Head of Corporate 
Governance

Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:

N/A

Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annexe 1 – Key Priority Targets for 
2018 to 2019

Other available papers (not 
attached):

Corporate Plan 2016 to 2020 
Service Delivery Plans for 2018 to 2019
Yearend Performance Report 2017 to 2018

Page 89

Agenda Item 7



Community & Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

2.2 The delivery of the Corporate Plan will be captured in the performance 
reports. The report details what will be done, what the Key Priority Targets 
are and how these will be measured. In September 2017 it was agreed by 
Chairman’s Group that progress against the Key Priority Targets would be 
reported directly to all councillors through the weekly Members Update, 
rather than to each committee. Performance targets for phase two (August 
to December) 2017/18 were reported on 12 January 2018. Phase three 
(yearend) was reported on 18 May 2018. All targets will continue to be 
reported to meetings of the Audit, Crime & Disorder and Scrutiny 
Committee for scrutiny. 

3 Key Priority Targets for 2018/19

3.1 Our Key Priority Targets are linked to our Annual Service Delivery Plans for 
2018/19. The targets for 2018 to 2019 have been developed in consultation 
with the Council’s officer Leadership Team and Committee Chairmen.  The 
targets are focused around our key priorities for 2018 to 2019

3.1 Our performance management arrangements for year two of our Corporate 
Plan (2017 to 2018) has been successfully completed. At the yearend, the 
progress report showed that 43 targets have been achieved, which equates 
to approximately 68% attainment for the year, as reported in the year 
progress report to all Councillors. 

3.2 Feedback received as part of year two has been fed into the target setting 
process for year three. We will continue to review our performance 
management processes to ensure performance information submitted 
facilitates decision making and is fit for purpose. The Community & 
Wellbeing Committee is asked to review and agree its targets for 2018 to 
2019 as outlined in Annexe 1.

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of this report.

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 Monitoring Officer’s comments:  There are no legal issues arising from 
this report.

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1 There are no particular community safety implications for the purpose of 
this report. 

7 Risk Assessment

7.1 Failure to maintain performance. Continue to ensure actions are identified 
and implemented for targets unachieved.

Page 90

Agenda Item 7



Community & Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

8 Conclusion and Recommendations

8.1 The Committee is requested to approve its Key Priority Targets for 
2018/19.

Ward(s) affected: All

Page 91

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Corporate Plan 2016 to 2020                                                                                          
Community & Wellbeing Committee’s Provisional Targets for 2018 to 2019

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Key Priority Targets for 2018/19 Responsible 
officer

Targets to be 
achieved by

Keeping our 

borough clean and 

green

 Maintain external accreditation to:

o Alexandra Rec Ground

o Ewell Court Park

o Rosebery Park, and

o A South and South East Award for Nonsuch Park 

Ian Dyer December 2018

 Produce Operational Management Plans for:

o Poole Road Park, and

o Long Grove Park 

Ian Dyer December 2018

 Hold at least three Community Clean up events Ian Dyer November 2018

Supporting our 

community

 To complete the build in the Long Grove Skate Park extension

 Arrange a fun day to officially open the park by June 2018 

Rod Brown May 2018

June 2018

 As part of the Health & Wellbeing Strategy, review the social 

prescribing pilot scheme and recommend the next steps to the 

Community and Wellbeing Committee 

Ian Dyer September 2018

 Produce a policy for the management of events on Council land Ian Dyer April 2018

 Submission of a planning application to extend Epsom Cemetery Rod Brown September 2018

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Key Priority Targets for 2018/19 Responsible 
officer

Targets to be 
achieved by

Supporting our 

community

 Less than 40 households living in emergency nightly paid temporary 

accommodation per month 

Rod Brown March 2019

 At least 8 households accommodated through the private sector 

leasing scheme 

Rod Brown March 2019

 At least 30 households supported through the rent deposit scheme Rod Brown March 2019

Managing our 

resources

 Agree an action plan and Implement the recommendations from the 
Playhouse Review 

Andrew Lunt October 2018

 Epsom Playhouse:

o Replace the stage

o Replace the first floor changing rooms at the Playhouse 

Andrew Lunt March 2019

 Replace the air conditioning units and lighting at Bourne Hall Andrew Lunt March 2019

P
age 95

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 96



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

FORWARD PLAN FOR COMMITTEE ITEMS

Head of Service/Contact: Amardip Healy, Chief Legal Officer
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision required: N/A
Annexes/Appendices (attached): Annex 1: Forward Plan 2018/19
Other available papers (not attached): None

Report summary
This report sets out a work plan for the next Municipal Year.

Recommendation (s)

That the Committee notes the forward plan for items.

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The Council’s Key Priorities and Service Plans are under pinned by 
decisions made by the relevant policy committees.

2 Background

2.1 The forward plan for committee items will be updated and reported to 
each meeting of this Committee.  It is intended to support the delivery of 
the Key Priority Targets and provide members with an overview on 
upcoming reports.

2.2 A report elsewhere on the Agenda sets out the Community and Wellbeing 
Committee’s Key Priority Targets for 2018-19.  Progress against these 
targets will be reported in Members’ Update and monitored by the Audit, 
Crime & Disorder and Scrutiny Committee.

3 Proposals

3.1  A forward plan of anticipated reports is attached at Annex 1.

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 Whilst there are no direct financial or manpower implications for the 
purposes of this report, it should be noted that overall financial and 
resource implications were taken into account when developing the Key 
Priority Targets for the policy committees.

4.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: None for the purposes of this report.

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 There are no direct implications for the purposes of this report.

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments:  Having a work plan reported to each 
meeting is supported.

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications; Partnership

6.1 There are no implications for the purposes of this report.

7 Risk Assessment

7.1 Good planning facilitates timely effective decision-making in the 
achievement of the Committee’s targets.

8 Conclusion and Recommendations

8.1 Not all of the Committee’s Key Priority Targets require a committee report 
prior to implementation.  However, the forward plan for committee items 
will assist Officers in delivering those targets that require a decision on a 
matter of policy prior to implementation.

8.2 The Committee is asked to note the forward plan for committee items set 
out in Annex 1, which will be reported regularly to the Committee and 
updated as necessary.

Ward(s) Affected: (All Wards);

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



COMMUNITY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE

October 2018 

Social Prescribing

Playhouse Review Action Plan

January 2019 

Progress on Daycare+

Parks Management Plans (x2)

Capital Programme 

Revenue Budget

Fees and Charges

Information update (not for inclusion on the agenda): Annual report on 
allotments

March 2019

Key Priority Targets for 2019 to 2020

Page 99

Agenda Item 8
Annex 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Community and Wellbeing Committee
12 June 2018

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Committee is asked to consider whether it wishes to pass a resolution to 
exclude the Press and Public from the meeting in accordance with Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that the business 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3  
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended) and that pursuant to 
paragraph 10 of Part 2 of the said Schedule 12A the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Document is Restricted

Page 103

Agenda Item 10By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

Agenda Item 10
Annex 1

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
to the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Epsom and St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust: Future for Acute Services
	Epsom and St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust: Future for Acute Services Annex 1
	ESHUHT Strategic outline case: Future for Acute Services Annex 2

	5 Home From Hospital Proposal
	6 Review of Cafes in Parks
	Review of Cafes in Parks Annexe 1

	7 Corporate Plan: Key Priority Targets for 2018 to 2019
	Corporate Plan: Key Priority Targets for 2018 to 2019 Annexe 1

	8 Forward Plan for Committee Items
	Forward Plan for Committee Items Annex 1

	9 Exclusion of Press and Public
	10 Update on Charging Protocol - June 2018
	Update on Charging Protocol - June 2018 Annexe 1


